
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  September 3, 2025 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting 

is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and 
is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant 
to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board 
also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 
Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. 
 

(b) The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on September 17, 2025 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting will take place 
in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338. 
 

 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes. We encourage all community 
members to engage with public comments to the Board of Commissioners.  However, out of 
respect for our audience and a general sense of decorum please refrain from vulgar, 
threatening or inappropriate language.) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM August 20, 2025   

  6.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. RECLASSIFICATION OF TWO EMPLOYEES – Matt Hawkins 

   

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

        
a) Polk County Contract No. 25-155, Oregon Health Authority 

(Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 

b) Polk County Contract No. 25-157, State of Oregon Department of 
Corrections 
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 
 

c) Polk County Contract No. 25-159, Marion County 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

 
d) Polk County Contract No. 25-160, Polk County Deputy District Attorneys 

(Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

                                       
                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 

  POLK COUNTY PUBLIC MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

GUIDELINE FOR CITIZENS 
***************************** 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

Regular meetings of the Polk County Board of Commissioners convene at 9 a.m. each Wednesday morning. Any 
person wishing to bring a matter before the Board at one of these meetings may do so by mailing or delivering 
written notice, concisely describing the nature of the item, to the Board of Commissioners, Polk County Courthouse, 
Dallas, Oregon 97338, by noon on the preceding Thursday. Unless otherwise announced, meetings are held in the 
Main Conference Room of the Courthouse. 

***************************** 

APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 
 

The Board sets aside a time at each regular meeting for comment by the public on subjects not appearing on the 
Agenda. Individuals may come forward and make any statement they wish, but not to exceed three (3) minutes in 
length, except as is required to give concise answers to questions from Board members. If the subject will require 
a lengthier presentation, or merits inclusion as an item on the Agenda of a future meeting, the Board shall schedule 
it accordingly. 

***************************** 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT 

Land Use 
 
1. Chairman opens hearing. 
 a. Reading of hearing request or appeal statement. 
 b. Call for abstentions (ex parte contact or conflict of interest). 
2. County staff presents background, summary and its recommendation (20-minute limit). 
3. Applicant (Appellant) presents his/her case (15-minute limit). 
4.  Public testimony. Note that all testimony and evidence must be directed toward the applicable factual and 

legal criteria as identified in the record and/or during this hearing. Do not repeat previous testimony. Simply 
note for the record that you are in agreement with that earlier testimony. Your time to present testimony is 
limited. FAILURE TO RAISE AN ISSUE IN THIS HEARING, IN PERSON OR BY LETTER, OR FAILURE 
TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPECIFICITY TO AFFORD THE BOARD AN OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND 
TO THE ISSUE MAY PRECLUDE LATER APPEAL TO LUBA ON THAT ISSUE. 

 a. Individuals in favor of the application or appeal. 
 b. Individuals against the application or appeal. At the discretion of the Chairman, an attorney, 

consultant, or other designated representative of two or more individuals may be allowed the 
combined time for each represented individual who does not speak, not to exceed 20 minutes. The 
Chairman may require proof of designation. 

5. Rebuttal by Applicant (Appellant) (10-minute limit). 
6. Questions from Board (discussion limited to individuals questioned by the Board).  
 a. Staff. 
 b. Applicant (Appellant). 
 c. Individuals testifying. 
7. Chairman closes hearing and announces closing of Record. 
8. Chairman announces date for deliberation and decision. 
9. The Board's decision is deemed the final decision of Polk County. It may be appealed to LUBA within 21 

days of its issuance in written form. The address and phone number of LUBA may be obtained from the Polk 
County Community Development Department and will also appear on the Notice of Decision which will be 
mailed to all persons who testify, submit comments, or print their name and address on the hearing 
attendance sheet at the back of the hearing room. 

 

 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES August 20, 2025  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst was present and Commissioner Gordon was absent. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
  None. 
 
 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    BOTH VOTED YES. 
    MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM.  
 
 
 
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF August 13, 2025 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF August 13, 2025. 

      
     BOTH VOTED YES. 
    MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM.  
 
 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

   
     BOTH VOTED YES.    
    MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM. 
 
 

 
 
 
 



August 20, 2025 
Page 2 

 

  

 
 
 
 
7. DALLAS FOOD BANK UPDATE AND LETTER OF SUPPORT REQUEST  

Eileen Dicicco, Dallas Food Bank, introduced herself and stated that she was present 
today to talk about what the Dallas Food Bank has been up to in Dallas and to also ask 
for a letter of support because they are seeking to build a 3,000 square-foot facility to 
better serve more than 5,000 food-insecure individuals annually, 89% of whom reside in 
Polk County. The current 1,800 square-foot leased space in the Main Street Plaza has 
numerous shortfalls. A new facility will provide adequate space to serve the families in a 
more dignified manner. Mrs. Dicicco shared some statistics on how many households 
they assist and she talked about the pick-up process in their office. She stated that lack 
of space has been an issue. Mrs. Dicicco said that the building they are in is up for sale 
and their lease ends at the end of this year. Mrs. Dicicco stated that they will be 
purchasing the property on their own as they have been saving up for this for 10 years 
and the City of Dallas will be applying for a $1.5 million federal community development 
block grant. The current estimate for the costs of $2.1 million, but they may bring the size 
of the building down to get the costs closer to $1.96 million. Commissioner Pope asked 
why the cost of the building is $700 square feet for a bare building and Mrs. Dicicco 
answered his question. Commissioner Pope asked if she knows what the Ella Curran 
project is costing and Mrs. Dicicco answered his question. Commissioner Pope asked if 
Marion County Food Share is contributing to this project and she said no, they help assist 
with getting different food into their facility. Commissioner Pope asked who else is 
planning to provide a letter support and Mrs. Dicicco answered him. Commissioner 
Mordhorst asked if there are any contractors who support them and Mrs. Dicicco 
answered his question. Commissioner Pope said they would take it under consideration 
and thanked her for her time. 
 
 
 

The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

a) Polk County Contract No. 25-148, Regence 
BlueCross BlueShield 
(Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 

b) Polk County Contract No. 25-150, Killian & 
O’Halloran, Inc. 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

 
 
 
  



August 20, 2025 
Page 3 

 

  

There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Pope adjourned the meeting 
at 9:20 a.m.  
 
 
 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Craig Pope, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: August 27, 2025 



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3174

(503) 623-1888 *FAX (503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

DATE: August 29,2025

SUBJECT: Reclassification of a Health Services Supervisor II and a Health Services Supervisor III

Wednesday - September3,2025 (5 minutes)

RECOMMENDATION
The Board of Commissioners approve the reclassification of a Health Services Supervisor II and a
Health Services Supervisor III.

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:
It is recommended that Michelle Holland and Ariel Parker, from Health Services, both be reclassified

to the position of Health Services Supervisor IV. Noelle Carroll, Health Services Director, has made

this request for the following reasons. Michelle and Ariel are both being asked to take on much higher

levels of expectations within the Health Services Department. Michelle is currently a HS Supervisor

III, but will be taking on all things related to Outpatient administrative care within the organization.

Ariel is currently a HS Supervisor II; however, she will now be taking on all duties related to Services

and Programming for the CARES Center.

Michelle is currently at step 7 of the Health Services Supervisor III position which is $8,053 monthly. If
the reclassification is approved, she would move to step 7 of the Health Services Supervisor IV position

which is $8,588.

Ariel is currently at step 3 of the Health Services Supervisor II position which is $6,365 monthly. If the

reclassification is approved, she would move to step 1 of the Health Services Supervisor IV position

which is $6,788.

Should the reclassification be approved, it would be effective September I,2025



‭CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET‬

‭Staff Contact:‬ ‭Rosana Warren Rivera‬ ‭Phone Number (Ext):‬ ‭2550‬

‭Department:‬ ‭Health Services: Public Health‬ ‭Consent Calendar Date:‬ ‭August 27, 2025‬

‭Contractor Name:‬ ‭Oregon Health Authority‬

‭Address:‬ ‭635 Capitol Street NE, Room 350‬

‭City, State, Zip:‬ ‭Salem, OR 97301‬

‭Effective Dates - From:‬ ‭July 01, 2025‬ ‭Through:‬ ‭June 30, 2027‬

‭Contract Amount:‬ ‭$23,410.82‬

‭Background:‬
‭The County receives funds from the Oregon Health Authority to provide Public Health Services to residents‬
‭of the County by way of a grant. This is Amendment 1 to IGA 185827 (No. 25-109) the initial award from the‬
‭State. The grant award may be modified from time-to-time throughout the fiscal year to reflect changes to‬
‭funds and/or programs that are made as part of the grant.‬

‭Discussion:‬
‭This Amendment awards funding to the Public Health PE43 Immunization services for the next biennium in‬
‭the amount of $21,893 and PE01 Communicable Disease in the amount of $1,517.82.‬

‭Fiscal Impact:‬
‭The total award for this Amendment is $23,410.82 as expected with services continuing as status quo. The‬
‭Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this funding.‬

‭Recommendation:‬
‭It is recommended that Polk County sign Amendment 1 to IGA 185827 with the Oregon Health Authority.‬

‭Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:‬
‭Name:‬ ‭Rosana Warren Rivera‬ ‭E-mail:‬ ‭hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us‬

‭Name:‬ ‭E-mail:‬



185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 1 OF 16 PAGES 

OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate formats such as 
Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an 
alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice) 
or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format. 

Agreement #185827 

AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 
2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 

FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

This First Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2025-2027 Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Financing of Public Health Services, effective July 1, 2025, (as amended the “Agreement”), is between the State 
of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and Polk County, (“LPHA”), the entity 
designated, pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health Authority for Polk County.  OHA and LPHA 
are each a “Party” and together the “Parties” to the Agreement. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the set of Program Element Descriptions set forth in 
Exhibit B of the Agreement 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Financial Assistance Award set forth in Exhibit C of 
the Agreement. 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance 
at 2 CFR Part 200 as set forth in Exhibit J of the Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 1. This Amendment is effective on July 15, 2025, regardless of the date this amendment has been fully
executed with signatures by every Party and when required, approved by the Department of Justice.
However, payments may not be disbursed until the Amendment is fully executed.

Polk County Contract No. 25-155
(Amendment 1 to 25-109)



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 2 OF 16 PAGES 

2. The Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 
a. Exhibit A “Definitions”, Section 18 “Program Element” is amended to replace the information 

for PE01 and add the information for PE43, titles and funding source identifiers as follows: 

PE NUMBER AND TITLE 

• SUB-ELEMENT(S) 
FUND 
TYPE 

FEDERAL AGENCY/ 

GRANT TITLE 
CFDA# 

HIPAA 
RELATED 

(Y/N) 

SUB-
RECIPIENT 

(Y/N) 

PE01 State Support for Public Health 

PE 01-01 State Support for 
Public Health (SSPH) GF N/A N/A N N 

PE01-12 ACDP Infection 
Prevention Training FF 

Oregon 2020 Epidemiology 
& Laboratory Capacity for 
Prevention and Control of 
Emerging Infectious 
Diseases (ELC) 

93.323 N Y 

PE43 Immunization Services 

PE 43-01 Immunization 
Services  FF CDC/Immunization 

Cooperative Agreements 93.268 N Y 

PE 43-02 Wallowa County and 
School Law GF N/A N/A N N 

PE43-05 OIP Bridge COVID FF Immunization Cooperative 
Agreements 93.268 N Y 

PE 43-06 CARES Flu  FF CDC/Immunization and 
Vaccines for Children 93.268 N Y 

PE 43-07 School Law GF N/A N/A N N 

b. Exhibit B Program Element #43 “Immunization Services” is hereby added by Attachment A 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

c. Exhibit C, Section 1 of the Agreement, entitled “Financial Assistance Award” is hereby 
superseded and replaced in its entirety by Attachment B, entitled “Financial Assistance Award”, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Attachment B must be read in 
conjunction with Section 2 of Exhibit C. 

d. Exhibit J of the Agreement entitled “Information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 
2 CFR Part 200” is amended to add to the federal award information datasheet as set forth in 
Attachment C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. LPHA represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of LPHA set forth in 
Section 4 of Exhibit F of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if 
made on the date hereof. 

4. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in 
the Agreement. 

5. Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 
6. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together 

shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories 
to the same counterpart.  Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original. 



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 3 OF 16 PAGES 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth 
below their respective signatures. 
7. Signatures. 

STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

Approved by:   
Name: /for/ Nadia A. Davidson  
Title: Director of Finance  

Date:   

POLK COUNTY LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH AUTHORITY 

Approved by:   

Printed Name:   

Title:   

Date:   

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE – APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

Agreement form group-approved by Devon Thorson, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Tax and 
Finance Section, General Counsel Division, Oregon Department of Justice by email on August 11, 2025, 
copy of email approval in Agreement file. 

REVIEWED BY OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

Reviewed by:   
Name: Rolonda Widenmeyer (or designee)  
Title: Program Support Manager  

Date:   



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 4 OF 16 PAGES 

Attachment A 
Exhibit B - Program Element Descriptions 

Program Element #43: Public Health Practice (PHP) Immunization Services 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:   
Public Health Division/Center for Public Health Practice, Immunization Section 
1. Description.   

Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in accordance with, 
and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver Immunization Services.  
Routine immunization services are provided in the community to prevent and mitigate vaccine-
preventable diseases for all people by reaching and maintaining high lifetime immunization rates.  
Immunization services funded under this Agreement include population-based services including public 
education, enforcement of school immunization requirements, and technical assistance for healthcare 
providers that provide vaccines to their client populations; as well as vaccine administration to 
underserved populations that lack access to vaccination with an emphasis on ensuring equity in service 
delivery.  
This Program Element and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in the Issue Date of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in Exhibit C of 
the Financial Assistance Award.  

2. Definitions Specific to Immunization Services. 
a. ALERT IIS:  OHA’s statewide immunization information system. 
b. Billable Doses:  Vaccine doses given to individuals who opt to pay out of pocket or are insured 

for vaccines. 
c. Case Management: An individualized plan for securing, coordinating, and monitoring disease-

appropriate treatment interventions. 
d. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention or CDC: Federal Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention.  
e. Electronic Health Record (EHR) or Electronic Medical Record (EMR):  a digital version of 

a patient’s paper medical chart.  
f. Exclusion Orders:  Legal notification to a parent or guardian of their child’s noncompliance 

with the School/Facility Immunization Law.  
g. Forecasting:  Determining vaccines due for an individual, based on immunization history and 

age. 
h. HBsAg Screening:  Testing to determine presence of Hepatitis B surface antigen, indicating the 

individual carries the disease. 
i. IQIP, Immunization Quality Improvement for Providers: A continuous quality improvement 

process developed by CDC to improve clinic immunization rates and practices.  
j. IRIS System: An electronic system developed and maintained by OHA used by LPHAs to issue 

exclusion orders and report school- and child care site-specific data. 
k. Oregon Vaccine Stewardship Statute: State law requiring all state supplied vaccine providers 

to:  
(1) Submit all vaccine administration data, including dose level eligibility codes, to ALERT 

IIS;  



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 5 OF 16 PAGES 

(2) Use ALERT IIS ordering and inventory modules; and 
(3) Verify that at least two employees have current training and certification in vaccine 

storage, handling, and administration, unless exempt under statute. 
l. Orpheus: An electronic communicable disease database and surveillance system intended for 

local and state public health epidemiologists and disease investigators to manage communicable 
disease reporting. 

m. Public Provider Agreement and Profile:  Signed agreement a between OHA and LPHA that 
receives State-Supplied Vaccine/IG.  Agreement includes clinic demographic details, program 
requirements and the number of patients vaccinated. 

n. Section 317:  Funding that provides no cost vaccine to individuals who meet eligibility 
requirements based on insurance status, age, risk factors, and disease exposure. 

o. Service Area:  Geographic areas in Oregon served by immunization providers. 
p. Vaccine Access Program (VAP):  Vaccine or Immune Globulin provided by the OHA procured 

with federal and state funds.   
q. Surveillance:  The routine collection, analysis and dissemination of data that describe the 

occurrence and distribution of disease, events or conditions. 
r. Vaccine Adverse Events Reporting System or VAERS:  Federal system for reporting adverse 

events following vaccine administration.  
s. Vaccine Eligibility:  An individual’s eligibility for vaccine/IG based on insurance coverage for 

immunization.  
t. Vaccines for Children (VFC) Program:  A Federal entitlement program providing no-cost 

vaccines to children 0 through 18 years who are:  
(1) American Indian/Alaskan Native; or, 
(2) Uninsured; or, 
(3) Medicaid-enrolled; or, 
(4) Underinsured and are served in Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) or Rural 

Health Centers (RHC); or, 
(5) Underinsured and served by LPHAs. 

u. Vaccine Site Visit: An on-site visit conducted at least every two years to ensure compliance 
with state and federal immunization requirements.  

v. Vaccine Information Statement or VIS: Federally-required patient handouts produced by CDC 
with information about the risks and benefits of each vaccine. 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities.  
The activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Public Health Modernization Manual at:  
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manu
al.pdf):   

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 6 OF 16 PAGES 

a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 
Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 
 

C
D

 C
on

tro
l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with 
each component 

Vaccines for Children 
Program Enrollment     *  X     X 
Oregon Vaccine 
Stewardship Statute     * X       
Vaccine Management     *       X 
Billable Vaccine/IG     *  X      
Vaccine Administration     *       X 
Immunization Rates, 
Outreach and Education    *   X      
Tracking and Recall    *     X    
Surveillance of Vaccine-
Preventable Diseases *        X    
Adverse Events Following 
Immunizations     *        
Perinatal Hepatitis B 
Prevention, Screening 
and Documentation 

*        X    
School/Facility 
Immunization Law    *     X    

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metrics, Health Outcome Indicators:  

• Two-year-old vaccination rates 

• Adult influenza vaccination rates for ages 65+ 
  



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 7 OF 16 PAGES 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metrics, LPHA Process Measures:  

• Demonstrated use of data to identify population(s) of focus.  

• Demonstrated actions to improve access to influenza vaccination for residents of long-
term care facilities (LTCFs). 

• Demonstrated actions with health care providers or pharmacists to improve access to 
vaccination. 

• Increase in the percent of health care providers participating in the Immunization Quality 
Improvement Program (IQIP). 

• Demonstrated outreach and educational activities conducted with community partners. 
4. Procedural and Operational Requirements.  

By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded under this Agreement and for this Program 
Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance with the following requirements:   
a. Vaccine Access Program OR Vaccines for Children Program Enrollment. LPHA must 

maintain enrollment as an active VAP provider or VFC Provider to assure access to clinical 
immunization services in the jurisdiction.  
If LPHA contracts out for clinical services, LPHA must ensure that Subcontractor maintains 
enrollment as an active VFC Provider or Vaccine Access Provider. All subcontracts must include 
assurance of vaccine access to persons who are unable to receive needed vaccines in a timely 
manner. 

b. Oregon Vaccine Stewardship Statute. LPHA must comply with all sections of the Oregon 
Vaccine Stewardship Statute. 

c. Vaccine Management. 
(1) LPHA must conduct a monthly, physical inventory of all vaccine storage units and must 

reconcile their inventory in ALERT IIS. Inventory files must be kept for a minimum of 
three years.  

(2) LPHA must submit vaccine orders according to the tier assigned by the OHA’s 
Immunization Program. 

d. Billable Vaccine/IG. 
(1) OHA will bill LPHA quarterly for Billable Doses of vaccine.  
(2) OHA will bill the published price in effect at the time the vaccine dose is administered. 
(3) LPHA may not charge or bill a patient more for the vaccine than the published price. 
(4) Payment is due 30 days after the invoice date. 

e. Vaccine Administration. 
(1) Section 317 vaccines may only be administered to recipients determined to be eligible 

according to the most current vaccine eligibility chart, available at 
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/PREVENTIONWELLNESS/VACCINESIMMUNIZATIO
N/IMMUNIZATIONPROVIDERRESOURCES/Documents/317chart.pdf. 

  

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/PREVENTIONWELLNESS/VACCINESIMMUNIZATION/IMMUNIZATIONPROVIDERRESOURCES/Documents/317chart.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/PREVENTIONWELLNESS/VACCINESIMMUNIZATION/IMMUNIZATIONPROVIDERRESOURCES/Documents/317chart.pdf


OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 8 OF 16 PAGES 

(2) In connection with the administration of a vaccine, LPHA must: 
(a) Confirm that a recipient, parent, or legal representative has read, or has had read 

to them, the VIS and has had their questions answered prior to the administration 
of the vaccine.  

(b) Make the VIS available in other languages or formats when needed (e.g., when 
English is not a patient’s primary language or for those needing the VIS in 
braille.) 

(c) Provide to the recipient, parent or legal representative, documentation of vaccines 
received at visit.  LPHA may provide a new immunization record or update the 
recipient’s existing handheld record.   

(d) Screen for contraindications and precautions prior to administering vaccine and 
document that screening has occurred. 

(e) Document administration of an immunization using a vaccine administration 
record or electronic equivalent, including all federally-required charting elements. 
(Note- ALERT IIS does not record all federally-required elements and cannot be 
used as a replacement for this requirement.) 

(f) If LPHA documents vaccine administration electronically, LPHA must 
demonstrate the ability to override a VIS date in their EHR system to record the 
actual publication date.  

(g) Comply with state and federal statutory and regulatory retention schedules, 
available for review at 
https://sos.oregon.gov/archives/Documents/recordsmgmt/sched/schedule-health-
public.pdf, or OHA’s office located at 800 NE Oregon St, Suite 370, Portland, OR  
97232.  

(h) Comply with Vaccine Billing Standards.  See Attachment 1 to this Program 
Element, incorporated herein by this reference. 

f. Immunization Rates, Outreach and Education.   
(1) OHA will provide annually to LPHA their IQIP rates and other population-based county 

rates.  
(2) By June 30 of every year, using a template provided by OHA and agreed upon by CLHO, 

LPHA will complete an annual outreach workplan by selecting from OHA-suggested 
activities or creating their own. and submit to OHA: 
(a) LPHA must, during the state fiscal year, design and implement two educational or 

outreach activities in their Service Area (either singly or in collaboration with 
other community and service provider organizations) designed to increase access 
to clinical immunization services.  

(b) Activities should be designed to serve communities with limited access to 
immunization services or groups placed at increased risk of severe disease 
outcomes. 

g. Tracking and Recall.  
(1) LPHA must Forecast immunizations due for clients requiring Immunization Services using 

the ALERT IIS electronic Forecasting system or equivalent system compliant with the 
Clinical Decision Support for Immunization standards published by the CDC. 



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 9 OF 16 PAGES 

(2) LPHA must cooperate with OHA to recall a client if a dose administered by LPHA to such 
client is found by LPHA or OHA to have been mishandled and/or administered incorrectly, 
thus rendering such dose invalid.  

h. Surveillance of Vaccine-Preventable Diseases.  LPHA must conduct Surveillance within its 
Service Area in accordance with the Communicable Disease Administrative Rules, the 
Investigation Guidelines for Notifiable Diseases, the Public Health Laboratory User’s Manual, 
and the Model Standing Orders for Vaccine, available for review at: 
http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease 
http://public.health.oregon.gov/LaboratoryServiceshttp://public.health.oregon.gov/PreventionWe
llness/VaccinesImmunization/ImmunizationProviderResources/Pages/provresources.aspx  

i. Adverse Events Following Immunizations.   
LPHA must complete and electronically file a VAERS form if:  
(1) An adverse event following immunization administration occurs, as listed in "Reportable 

Events Following Immunization”, available for review at  
http://vaers.hhs.gov/professionals/index#Guidance1  

(2) An event occurs that the package insert lists as a contraindication to additional vaccine 
doses. 

(3) OHA requests a follow-up report to an earlier reported adverse event; or 
(4) Any other event LPHA believes to be related directly or indirectly to the receipt of any 

vaccine administered by LPHA or others occurs within 30 days of vaccine administration 
and results in either the death of the person or the need for the person to visit a licensed 
health care provider or hospital. 

j. Perinatal Hepatitis B Prevention, Screening and Documentation  
(1) LPHA must provide Case Management services to all confirmed or suspect HBsAg-positive 

mother-infant pairs identified by LPHA or OHA in LPHA’s Service Area. 
(2) Case Management will be performed in accordance with the Perinatal Hepatitis B 

Prevention Program Guidelines posted on the OHA website at 
https://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCom
municableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Documents/hepbperi.pdf and must include, at a 
minimum: 
(a) Screen for HBsAg status or refer to a health care provider for screening of HBsAg 

status, all pregnant women receiving prenatal care from public prenatal programs.  
(b) Work with birthing hospitals within LPHA’s Service Area when maternal 

screening and documentation of hepatitis B serostatus in the Electronic Birth 
Registration System drops below 95%.  

(c) Work with birthing hospitals within LPHA’s Service Area when administration of 
the birth dose of hepatitis B vaccine drops below 80% as reported in the 
Electronic Birth Registration System. 

(d) Ensure that laboratories and health care providers promptly report HBsAg-
positive pregnant women to LPHA. 

(e) Provide Case Management services to HBsAg-positive mother-infant pairs to 
track administration of hepatitis B immune globulin, hepatitis B vaccine doses 
and post-vaccination serology. 

http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease
http://public.health.oregon.gov/LaboratoryServices
http://public.health.oregon.gov/PreventionWellness/VaccinesImmunization/ImmunizationProviderResources/Pages/provresources.aspx
http://public.health.oregon.gov/PreventionWellness/VaccinesImmunization/ImmunizationProviderResources/Pages/provresources.aspx
http://vaers.hhs.gov/professionals/index#Guidance1
https://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Documents/hepbperi.pdf
https://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/ReportingCommunicableDisease/ReportingGuidelines/Documents/hepbperi.pdf


OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 10 OF 16 PAGES 

(f) Provide HBsAg-positive mothers with initial education and referral of all 
susceptible contacts for hepatitis B vaccination. 

k. School/Facility Immunization Law  
(1) LPHA must comply with the Oregon School Immunization Law, Oregon Revised Statutes 

433.235 - 433.284,  and Oregon Administrative Rules 333-050-0140  
(2) LPHA must take orders for and deliver Certificate of Immunization Status (CIS) forms to 

schools and children’s facilities located in their jurisdiction. Bulk orders of CIS forms will 
be provided to the LPHA by the state. 

(3) LPHA must cover the cost of mailing/shipping all Exclusion Orders to parents and to 
schools, school-facility packets which are materials for completing the annual 
school/facility exclusion process as required by the Oregon School Immunization Law, 
Oregon Revised Statutes 433.235 - 433.284 and the administrative rules promulgated 
pursuant thereto, Oregon Administrative Rules 333-050-0140.  

(4) LPHA may use electronic mail as an alternative or an addition to mailing/shipping if the 
LPHA has complete electronic contact information for all schools and children’s facilities 
and can confirm receipt of materials 

(5) LPHA must complete an annual Immunization Status Report that contains the immunization 
levels for attendees of: certified childcare facilities; preschools; Head Start facilities; and all 
schools within LPHA’s Service Area. LPHA must submit this report to OHA no later than 
23 days after the third Wednesday of February of each year in which LPHA receives 
funding for Immunization Services under this Agreement. Completion of Primary and 
Follow Up Tab data entry for all sites in the LPHA Service Area fulfills this requirement. 

l. Affordable Care Act Grants/Prevention and Public Health Project Grants 
(1) If one-time only funding becomes available, LPHA may opt in by submitting an application 

outlining activities and timelines.  The application is subject to approval by the OHA 
Immunization Program. 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting.  
LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division Expenditure and Revenue 
Report” located in Exhibit C of the Agreement. A separate report must be filed for each applicable 
Program Element and any sub-elements. These reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the 
following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First: July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second: October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third: January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth: April 1 – June 30 August 20 

 
  

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors433.html
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors433.html
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action%3bJSESSIONID_OARD=2rAGjMwAFKyKGiwIdp_03oUv7xaI6kjlhXdVWS78XLgPdYNa0jj7%21479495115?selectedDivision=1265
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors433.html
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action%3bJSESSIONID_OARD=2rAGjMwAFKyKGiwIdp_03oUv7xaI6kjlhXdVWS78XLgPdYNa0jj7%21479495115?selectedDivision=1265


OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 11 OF 16 PAGES 

6. Program Reporting Requirements.  
a. LPHA must submit vaccine orders according to the ordering tier assigned by OHA.  
b. If LPHA is submitting vaccine administration data electronically to ALERT IIS, LPHA must 

electronically flag clients who are deceased or have moved out of the Service Area or the LPHA 
jurisdiction.  

c. LPHA must complete and submit an Immunization Status Report as required in Section 4.l.(4) of 
this Program Element. 

d. LPHA must submit a written corrective action plan to address any compliance issues identified at 
the triennial review site visit. 

7. Performance Measures. 
a. If LPHA provides Case Management to 5 births or more to HBsAg-positive mothers annually 

LPHA must ensure that 90% of babies receive post-vaccination serology by 15 months of age. If 
LPHA’s post-vaccination serology rate is lower than 90% LPHA must increase the percentage of 
babies receiving post-vaccination serology by at least one percentage point. 

b. LPHA must achieve VFC vaccine accounting excellence in all LPHA-operated clinics in the 
most recent quarter. Clinics achieve vaccine accounting excellence by: 
(1) Accounting for 95% of all vaccine inventory in ALERT IIS. 
(2) Reporting fewer than 5% of accounted for doses as expired, spoiled or wasted during the 

quarter. 
(3) Recording the receipt of vaccine inventory in ALERT IIS. 

c. LPHA must complete data entry into the IRIS system of 95% of Primary Review Summary 
follow-up reports (Sections E-H) from schools and children’s facilities within 21 days of the 
annual exclusion day and of exclusion orders 14 days prior to the exclusion day (excluding 
exclusion orders generated through a system other than IRIS). LPHA must follow the 
noncompliance steps outlined in OAR 333-050-0095 with any school or facility that does not 
submit a Primary Review Summary report.  
  



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 12 OF 16 PAGES 

Attachment 1 
 
 
 

OREGON’S IMMUNIZATION BILLING STANDARDS 
 
 

Standards for providing and billing for immunization services in Oregon’s Local Public Health 
Authorities (LPHAs) 

 
 Purpose: To standardize and assist in improving immunization billing practice 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Guiding Principles 
 
A modern LPHA understands their actual costs of doing business and dedicates 
resources to assuring continued financially viable operations. As such: 

 
1. LPHAs should continually assess immunization coverage in their 

respective communities, assure that vaccine is accessible to all across the 
lifespan, and bill appropriately for services provided by the LPHA. 
 

2. LPHAs who serve insured individuals should work to develop and 
continuously improve immunization billing capacity that covers the cost of 
providing services to those clients (e.g., develop agreements or contracts 
with health plans, set up procedures to screen clients appropriately, and 
bill vaccine administration fees that reflect the actual cost of services). 

 
3. Public and private health plans should reimburse LPHAs for the covered 

services of their members, with vaccine serum and administration fees 
reimbursed at 100% of actual costs. 

 
4. Each LPHA is uniquely positioned to assess the appropriate 

implementation of these standards. For example, Federally Qualified 
Health Centers (FQHCs) and Rural Health Clinics (RHCs) are obligated to 
follow a certain set of rules that may differ from these standards. 

 
5. LPHAs that contract out some or all clinical immunization services should 

consider including these standards in their contracts as expectations of the 
contracted service provider. 
 
 



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 13 OF 16 PAGES 

Standards require that an LPHA that provides immunization services: 
 

 Identify staff responsible for billing and contracting activities, dedicating at least a portion of 
one or more full-time equivalent (FTEs) positions to meet agency billing needs  

 Determine vaccine administration fees based on the actual cost of service and document how 
fees were determined. For a fee calculator, see 
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/PREVENTIONWELLNESS/VACCINESIMMUNIZATI
ON/IMMUNIZATIONPROVIDERRESOURCES/VFC/Documents/BillVacAdminCostFull.
xlsm.  

 Charge the actual costs for vaccine administration fees for all clients and discount the fee(s) as 
needed by contract, rule, or internal policy approved by OIP 

 Develop immunization billing policies and procedures that address: 

o Strategies to manage clients who require vaccines by state law, are not eligible 
for VFC or 317 and are unable to meet the cost of immunizations provided (out of 
network or unaffordable cost sharing) 

o The purchasing of privately owned vaccine and how fees are set for vaccine charges to 
the client 

o The appropriate charge for vaccine purchased from OIP, by including a statement that 
says, “We will not charge more than the OIP-published price for billable vaccine.” 

o Billing processes based on payor type (Medicaid/CCOs, private insurance, etc.), 
patient age, and vaccine eligibility  

 With certain limited exceptions as published in vaccine eligibility charts, use no federally 
funded vaccine on insured clients, including adult Medicaid and all Medicare clients 

 Identify and develop contracts or other appropriate agreements with relevant payors – 
including Coordinated Care Organizations (CCOs) to assure access to immunization services 
for insured members of the community 

 Bill private and public health plans directly for immunization services, when feasible, rather 
than collecting fees from the client and having them submit for reimbursement  

 Conduct regular quality assurance measures to ensure costs related to LPHA’s immunization 
services are being covered 

 Work to assure access to immunizations for Medicare-eligible members of the community 
and, if access is poor, provide Medicare Part B and/or Part D vaccines, as needed, and bill 
appropriately to cover the cost 

 
 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/PREVENTIONWELLNESS/VACCINESIMMUNIZATION/IMMUNIZATIONPROVIDERRESOURCES/VFC/Documents/BillVacAdminCostFull.xlsm
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/PREVENTIONWELLNESS/VACCINESIMMUNIZATION/IMMUNIZATIONPROVIDERRESOURCES/VFC/Documents/BillVacAdminCostFull.xlsm
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/PREVENTIONWELLNESS/VACCINESIMMUNIZATION/IMMUNIZATIONPROVIDERRESOURCES/VFC/Documents/BillVacAdminCostFull.xlsm


OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 14 OF 16 PAGES 

Attachment B 
Exhibit C - Financial Assistance Award 

 

 
 



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 15 OF 16 PAGES 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Federal Reporting Information on following pages. 
 
 



OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
185827 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 16 OF 16 PAGES 

Attachment C 
Exhibit J - Information required by CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 

 

 
 

 
 

NU50CK000541
10/13/23
08/1/2023-07/31/2026
CDC
93.323
Epidemiology & Laboratory Capacity for 
Infectious Diseases (ELC)
2,486,047
Oregon 2020 Epidemiology & Laboratory 
Capacity for Prevention and Control of 
Emerging Infectious Diseases (ELC)
Zoe Kaplan
17.79%
FALSE
No

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $1,517.82 $1,517.82

PE01-12 ACDP Infection Prevention Training

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Award:

Project Description:

Awarding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Award Identification Number:

Federal Award Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Awarding Agency:

CFDA Number:

HIPPA

NH23IP922673
06/26/25
7/1/2025-6/30/26
Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention
93.268
Immunization Cooperative 
Agreements
5,365,942
Strengthening Vaccine-
Preventable Disease Prevention 
and Response - 2025
Ms. Randi Tolstyk
16.69
FALSE
No

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $21,893.00 $21,893.00

PE43-01 Public Health Practice (PHP) - Immunization Services

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Award:

Project Description:

Awarding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Award Identification Number:

Federal Award Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Awarding Agency:

CFDA Number:

HIPPA



Contract  Review Sheet

Staff Contact:  

Title:  

Department:

Consent Calendar Date:  

Contractor Name:  

Address:  

Background/Discussion: 

    Thru: 
City, State, Zip: 
Effective Dates - From: 
Contract Amount: $ 

Fiscal Impact:  

Recommendation:  

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:   

Name:  

Name:  

Name:

E-mail:  

E-mail:  

E-mail:

Source Selection: 
Sole Source 

Competitive Quotes 

Formal Bid

Request for Proposals

Personal Services

Special/Exempt Procurement (explain below): 

_______________________________________________

_______________________________________________



IGA #6948 Polk County Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 1 of 14 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT #6948 
BETWEEN THE STATE OF OREGON AND POLK COUNTY 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I DEFINITIONS .............................................................................................................. 2 

II AUTHORITY AND DURATION .................................................................................... 3 

III  PLAN AND PLAN MODIFICATION ………………………………………………………..3 

IV AMENDMENTS GENERALLY ..................................................................................... 4 

V DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY ........................................................ 4 

VI DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES ........................................................................... 6 

VII PERFORMANCE GOALS ............................................................................................ 6 

VIII FUNDS ......................................................................................................................... 7 

IX NONCOMPLIANCE...................................................................................................... 7 

X INDEMNIFICATION.  See Exhibit B. ............................................................................ 7 

XI TERMINATION ............................................................................................................ 8 

XII COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW .................................................................... 8 

XIII ACCESS TO RECORDS .............................................................................................. 8 

XIV SURVIVAL ................................................................................................................... 9 

XV GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; VENUE ............................................................. 9 

XVI WAIVER ....................................................................................................................... 9 

XVII    EXECUTION AND COUNTERPARTS ....................................................................... 9 

XVIII  NOTICE ..................................................................................................................... 9 

XIX MERGER; INTEGRATION ......................................................................................... 10 

EXHIBIT A COUNTY INTERVENTION PLAN and BUDGET SUMMARY ......................... 11 

EXHIBIT B INDEMNIFICATION ........................................................................................ 12 

Polk County Contract No. 25-157



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 2 of 14 

This Agreement is between the State of Oregon acting by and through its Department of 
Corrections, hereafter called DEPARTMENT, and Polk County hereafter called COUNTY. 
 

Whereas, DEPARTMENT is an agency of the State of Oregon and COUNTY is a unit of 
local government of the State of Oregon and both parties desire to cooperate by agreement 
to provide correctional services in COUNTY within the requirements as authorized by ORS 
423.475 to 423.565; 

 
Whereas, the Legislative Assembly of Oregon enacted legislation establishing shared 
responsibility between county corrections programs and the DEPARTMENT on a continuing 
basis (ORS 423.475 to 423.565);  

 
Whereas, ORS 144.106 provides “the supervisory authority shall use a continuum of 
administrative sanctions for violations of post-prison supervision”; 

 
Whereas, Oregon Laws 2008, chapter 14 (Measure 57) was passed by voters of the State 
of Oregon increasing sentences for certain drug trafficking and theft crimes, requiring 
addiction treatment for certain offenders at risk of reoffending, and authorizing 
DEPARTMENT to make grants to counties to provide supplemental funding; 
 
Whereas, supplemental funds have been made available to counties for treatment of drug-
addicted persons, in accordance to OAR Chapter 291, Division 31; 
 
Whereas, supplemental funds are made available to counties based on a formula that 
matches the COUNTY’s percentage share of community corrections grant-in-aid funds; 

 
Whereas, the DEPARTMENT will administer distribution of grants to counties; 

 
Now, therefore, THE PARTIES HERETO, in consideration of the mutual promises, terms and 
conditions hereinafter provided, agree to the following: 
 
I DEFINITIONS 
 

A. Amendment:   Any change to this Agreement that alters the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement.  Plan Modifications are NOT Amendments.  

 
B. Budget Summary:  A budget submitted by COUNTY and approved by 

DEPARTMENT which identifies personnel, materials, services and funding 
COUNTY will use to implement the Plan.  COUNTY’s Intervention Budget Summary 
is described in Exhibit A, which is incorporated into and made part of this 
Agreement.  

 
C. Community Corrections Manager: Individual designated by COUNTY pursuant to 

ORS 423.525 as responsible for administration of the community corrections 
programs as set forth by the Plan. 

 
D. County Corrections: All COUNTY agencies and officials who carry out the 

responsibilities in ORS 423.478(2)(a)-(f) and the activities of carrying out those 
responsibilities. 

 
E. Supplemental Funding Intervention Grant or Grant: Grant(s) made by 

DEPARTMENT to assist COUNTY in the implementation and operation of the Plan 
under this Agreement. 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 3 of 14 

F. Supplemental Funding Intervention Plan or Plan: A document developed by the 
COUNTY and approved by the DEPARTMENT which describes COUNTY’s 
approach to providing effective Interventions for drug addicted adults on supervision 
under COUNTY supervision.  The County Intervention Plan is described in Exhibit 
A, County Intervention Plan and Budget Summary. 

 
G. Intervention: A response to Participant compliance with conditions of the Plan. 
 
H. Participant:  An adult, under supervision of the COUNTY and enrolled in the Plan. 
 
I. Plan Modification: A written change or alteration to the Plan promulgated by 

COUNTY modifying the Plan. 
 
J. Sanctions or Structured Sanctions:  A response to violation by an adult on 

supervision of conditions of supervision that uses custody units.  
 
K. Statewide Evaluation and Information System:  The Corrections Information 

Systems (CIS) including the Offender Profile System (OPS), the Integrated 
Supervision Information System (ISIS), Case Management for Institutions 
(CMI), Offender Management System (OMS), Offender Information System 
(OIS), Interstate Compact Offender Tracking System (ICOTS), and related 
case management modules. 
 

L. Supervisory Authority:  The local corrections official or officials designated in 
each COUNTY by that COUNTY’s Board of County Commissioners or 
county court to operate corrections supervision services, custodial facilities or 
both. 

 
M. Texas Christian University (TCU) Assessment Tool:  The Texas Christian University 

Assessment tool, to be used on Participants in COUNTY program, mandated by the 
DEPARTMENT. 

 
II  AUTHORITY AND DURATION 
 

A. Authority 
 

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the provisions of ORS 423.520. 
 

B. Duration 
 

This Agreement will become effective on July 1, 2025 and will remain in effect until 
June 30, 2027 or until terminated according to Section XI (Termination). 
 

III PLAN; PLAN MODIFICATIONS 
 

A. The Plan must be received and approved by DEPARTMENT before disbursements 
of Grant funds described in Section VIII can be made to COUNTY. 

 
B. Plan Modifications: COUNTY and DEPARTMENT agree that the Plan must remain 

a flexible instrument capable of responding to unforeseen needs and requirements.  
A copy of all Plan Modifications will be marked in sequence beginning with the 
designation “Plan Modification 1” and attached to the above-mentioned Plan.  



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 4 of 14 

DEPARTMENT will notify COUNTY of any concerns about the modification or the 
need for an amendment within a 30 calendar day period after DEPARTMENT 
receives the Plan Modification. 

 
C. Notice of Modification:  DEPARTMENT shall provide to COUNTY an approved form 

for modifications as soon as practicable after execution of this Agreement.  
 
D. Plan Modifications shall become effective upon the date the Plan Modification is 

approved in writing by the DEPARTMENT. 
 
IV AMENDMENTS GENERALLY 

 
The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or 
amended, in any manner whatsoever, except by written Amendment signed by the parties.  
An Amendment shall become effective only after all parties have signed and all approvals 
have been obtained. 

 
V DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY 
 

A. COUNTY shall assume administrative responsibility to provide services as outlined 
in the Plan. 

 
B. COUNTY shall incorporate the principles described below into the Plan: 
 

1. Treatment programs shall be evidence-based.  Evidence-based programs 
are delivered consistent with the findings in research about what works best 
to reduce recidivism. 

 
2. Assessment which is standardized, objective, and comprehensive shall be 

used to prioritize treatment, determine criminal risk factors, and to determine 
the proper level of care.  Assessments of risk shall be based on actuarial risk 
assessment tools. 

 
3. Rules, requirements and expectations for Participants, including 

consequences for success and for failure are made formal and clear by an 
authority figure. 

 
4. An individual case plan shall be developed for each Participant.  The case 

plan shall include criminal risk factors in addition to addiction that will be 
addressed in treatment.   

 
5. Treatment program design shall address issues of motivation.  Treatment 

options shall be available for Participants consistent with their assessed 
stage of change. 

 
6.   Treatment program design shall be culturally competent and responsive 

when identifying individuals who would be best served by a specific program. 
 
7. Treatment shall be based on cognitive and behavioral interventions and 

social learning approaches.  Treatment programs shall be of sufficient length 
and intensity to produce stable behavior changes based on replacing old 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 5 of 14 

patterns of thinking and behaving and learning and practicing new skills for 
avoiding drug use and criminal behavior.  

 
8. The Plan shall utilize a system of graduated Sanctions and incentives which 

are swift and certain and which encourage recovery goals while holding 
Participants accountable for non-compliant behaviors. 

 
9. Drug testing may be used as a treatment or accountability tool.  There shall 

be a response, either an intervention or sanction, for this or any other rule 
violation, but that response shall not automatically result in withdrawal from 
treatment.  Sanctions shall be administered in a manner to assure longer 
stays in treatment which are associated with good outcomes.   

 
10. Co-ed treatment shall be avoided if possible. 
 
11. Programs shall include relapse prevention planning and comprehensive 

transition planning so that participants are more likely to adjust to the next 
level of care or change in living situation.  

 
12. Addictions treatment programs must be licensed by the State of Oregon to 

provide addictions treatment. 
 
C. COUNTY shall incorporate the following data requirements into the Plan: 

 
1. COUNTY will identify Participants through the indicating ‘Y’ under the M57 

Tx data field, located in the Treatment Module. 
 

2. The start and stop date of the actual program participation, as well as 
program exit code, will be entered into the CIS Treatment Module. 

 
3. Program Participants will be assessed for level of severity of addiction, using 

the Texas Christian University assessment tool (available at no cost), and 
enter corresponding data as determined by DEPARTMENT. 

 
D. COUNTY will prepare and furnish such data, descriptive information and reports as 

may be requested by DEPARTMENT as needed to comply with ORS 423.520, 
which states in part, “The department shall require recipients of the grants to 
cooperate in the collection and sharing of data necessary to evaluate the effect of 
community corrections programs on future criminal conduct.” COUNTY will enter 
data into the Statewide Evaluation and Information System in a complete, accurate, 
and timely manner.  COUNTY acknowledges and agrees that DEPARTMENT has 
the right to reproduce, use and disclose all or any part of such reports, data and 
technical information furnished under this Agreement. 
 

E. COUNTY will permit authorized representatives of DEPARTMENT to make such 
review of records of COUNTY as may be necessary to satisfy audit and/or program 
review purposes.  A copy of any audit or monitoring report will be made available to 
COUNTY. 
 

F. COUNTY will follow DEPARTMENT’s prescribed allotment and expenditure 
reporting system in accordance with Exhibit A.  This system will be used for 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 6 of 14 

controlling Supplemental Funding Intervention Grant funds by DEPARTMENT and 
to provide suitable records for an audit. 
 

G. If funding from DEPARTMENT is reduced or discontinued by legislative action, 
COUNTY will not be required to increase use of COUNTY revenue for continuing or 
maintaining corrections services as set out in this Agreement. 
 

VI DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES.  The DEPARTMENT will: 
 

A. Participate according to this Agreement. 
 
B. Provide funding as described in Section VIII of this Agreement. 
 
C. Furnish COUNTY, in a timely manner, those rules, administrative directives and 

procedures required for COUNTY to meet its obligations described herein. 
 
D. Subject to system capacity and data processing capabilities, DEPARTMENT will 

furnish data, descriptive information and reports, available to DEPARTMENT and 
requested by COUNTY that will assist COUNTY in complying with DEPARTMENT 
requirements.  DEPARTMENT hereby grants to COUNTY the right to reproduce, 
use, and disclose all or part of such reports, data, and technical information 
furnished under this Agreement. 

 
E. If by legislative action, funding from DEPARTMENT is reduced to COUNTY, 

DEPARTMENT agrees to provide reasonable notice and transition opportunity to 
COUNTY of changes that may significantly alter approved appropriations and 
programs. 

 
F. DEPARTMENT will provide technical assistance to COUNTY in implementing and 

evaluating COUNTY’s Plan. 
 
VII PERFORMANCE GOALS 

 
Interventions funded under this Agreement will be evaluated by the DEPARTMENT for 
treatment effectiveness.  Goals for the evaluation are to determine if: 

 
A. Treatment programs are evidence-based, as evaluated by the Corrections Program 

Checklist. 
 
B. Recidivism is reduced:  Participants will recidivate at lower rates than similar 

untreated adults on supervision. 
 
C. Participants reduce drug use:  Results of random urinalysis will be analyzed. 
 
D. Participants show evidence of improved community functioning:  Improved 

community functioning will be measured by successful completion of the program 
and through the existing community corrections performance measures (successful 
completion of supervision, employment, payment of restitution and/or community 
service work). 

 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 7 of 14 

VIII FUNDS 
 

A. Exhibit A identifies the Supplemental Funding Intervention Grant funds authorized 
under this Agreement for the implementation of the Plan during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
B. Payment to COUNTY will be made in two payments.  One-half of the Grant funds 

will be disbursed to County within 15 days after execution of this Agreement.  The 
second half of the Grant funds will be disbursed on July 1, 2026. 

 
C. Both parties agree that all reallocations of Grant funds within programs shall require 

a Plan Modification.  
 
D. Unexpended Funds:  Grant fund balances remaining at the termination of this 

Agreement may be retained by the COUNTY, upon approval by DEPARTMENT, for 
the provision of on-going supervision, correctional services, and sanctions in 
accordance with the Plan.   
 

E. Unauthorized Expenditures: Any Grant funds disbursed to COUNTY that are 
expended for unauthorized purposes, or any Unexpended Funds not retained by 
COUNTY under Section VIII.D, will be deducted by DEPARTMENT from 
subsequent payments under this Agreement or refunded to DEPARTMENT 
promptly upon DEPARTMENT’s written request and no later than 15 days after 
DEPARTMENT’s written request.    

 
F. Maximum Grant Amount.  Grant funds are based upon COUNTY’s Application for 

Supplemental Funds.  Unless amended, the maximum, not-to-exceed Supplemental 
Funding Intervention Grant payable to COUNTY under this Agreement is 
$226,493.00. The maximum Grant amount may be increased only by written 
amendment of this Agreement which is signed by all parties and with all required 
State approvals. 

 
G. Disbursement of Grant funds under this Agreement is contingent on DEPARTMENT 

receiving funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments, or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow DEPARTMENT, in the exercise of its reasonable 
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement. 

 
IX NONCOMPLIANCE 
 

A. The Assistant Director of Community Corrections or the Assistant Director’s 
designee of the Community Corrections Division shall review COUNTY's 
compliance with this Agreement.  COUNTY must substantially comply with the 
provisions of the Plan received by DEPARTMENT and this Agreement. 

 
If, upon review, DEPARTMENT determines that there are reasonable grounds to 
believe that COUNTY is not in substantial compliance with the Agreement or Plan, 
including but not limited to COUNTY has failed to meet standards of evidence-
based treatment programs as required in Section V.B.1, DEPARTMENT and 
COUNTY shall proceed in accordance with OAR Chapter 291-031, to reach 
compliance or, if compliance is not obtained, to suspend funding. 
  



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 8 of 14 

X INDEMNIFICATION.  See Exhibit B, which is incorporated into and made part of this 
Agreement. 

 
 
XI TERMINATION 
 

A. Parties Right to Terminate at its Discretion.  At its sole discretion, any party to this 
Agreement may terminate this Agreement for its convenience upon 30 days’ prior 
written notice. 

 
B. Parties may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice if federal or 

state laws, regulations, or guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way that 
DEPARTMENT or COUNTY cannot lawfully perform its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

 
C. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement will remain in 

force only during its term and will not continue in force after its term. There will be no 
automatic extension. This Agreement may be extended only by written consent of 
the parties hereto. 

 
D. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or provision of 

this Agreement, including any part, term or provision of any appended material, is 
held by a court to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of Oregon or 
applicable administrative rule, that element of the contract including relevant 
appended materials will be void and without effect and will be treated by the parties 
as having been terminated as of the date of determination of the voidness.  

 
E. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement will 

automatically terminate if the State of Oregon provides no funding. If there is 
reduced state funding, COUNTY may terminate the Agreement as described herein. 

 
XII COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW 
 

Both Parties shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, regulations, executive 
orders, and ordinances to which each is subject and which is applicable to this Agreement.  
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the parties expressly agree to comply with: 
(i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and 
administrative rules established pursuant to those laws; and (v) all other applicable 
requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and 
regulations.  All employers, including COUNTY, that employ subject workers who work 
under this Agreement in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide 
the required Workers’ Compensation coverage unless such employers are exempt under 
ORS 656.126. COUNTY shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these 
requirements. 

 
Nothing is this Agreement shall require COUNTY or DEPARTMENT to act in violation of 
state or federal law or the Constitution of the State of Oregon.  

 
XIII ACCESS TO RECORDS 
 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 9 of 14 

For not less than six (6) years after Agreement expiration, DEPARTMENT, the Secretary of 
State’s Office of the State of Oregon, the federal government, and their duly authorized 
representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and records of 
COUNTY which are directly pertinent to this specific Agreement for the purpose of making 
audit, examination, excerpts, and transcripts. COUNTY shall retain all pertinent records 
until the later of (i) the date that is not less than six (6) years following the Agreement 
expiration date or (ii) the date on which all litigation regarding this Agreement is resolved.  
COUNTY agrees full access to DEPARTMENT will be provided in preparation for and 
during litigation.  Copies of applicable records shall be made available upon request.  
DEPARTMENT shall reimburse COUNTY for the cost of copies DEPARTMENT requests. 

 
XIV SURVIVAL 
 

All rights and obligations shall cease upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, 
except for the rights and obligations set forth in Sections IV, X, Xl, XII, XIII, XIV, and XV. 

 
XV GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; VENUE 
 

The laws of the State of Oregon (without giving effect to its conflicts of law principles) 
govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including, without limitation, 
its validity, interpretation, construction, performance, and enforcement. Any party bringing a 
legal action or proceeding against any other party arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement shall bring the legal action or proceeding in the Circuit Court of the State of 
Oregon for Marion County.  Each party hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such 
court, waives any objection to venue, and waives any claim that such forum is an 
inconvenient forum. 

 
XVI WAIVER 
 

The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement will not constitute a 
waiver by that party of that or any other provision. 
 

XVII EXECUTION AND COUNTERPARTS 
 

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which will be an original, 
all of which will constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 
XVIII NOTICE 
 

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any notices between the Parties 
to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, electronic 
mail, or mailing the same, postage prepaid to COUNTY or DEPARTMENT at the address or 
number set forth below, or to such other addresses or numbers as any Party may indicate 
pursuant to this section.  Any notice so addressed and mailed shall be effective five (5) 
days after mailing.  Any notice delivered by facsimile shall be effective on the day the 
transmitting machine generates a receipt of the successful transmission, if transmission 
was during normal business hours of the recipient, or on the next business day, if 
transmission was outside normal business hours of the recipient.  Any notice delivered by 
electronic mail shall be effective on the day of notification of delivery receipt, if delivery was 
during normal business hours of the recipient, or on the next business day, if delivery was 
outside normal business hours of the recipient.  Any notice given by personal delivery shall 
be effective when actually delivered to the Authorized Representatives listed below:   

 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 10 of 14 

To DEPARTMENT: Jeremiah Stromberg, Assistant Director 
Community Corrections Division 
Department of Corrections 
3723 Fairview Industrial Drive SE, Ste 200 
Salem, OR   97310 
Telephone:  503-945-8876 
Fax:  503-373-7810 
E-Mail:  Jeremiah.P.Stromberg@doc.oregon.gov  

 
 To COUNTY: Polk County 
  Community Corrections 
 820 SW Church Street Ste 100 
 Dallas, OR  97338 
 Telephone:  503-623-5226 
 Fax:  503-623-5326 
 Email: merritt.jodi@co.polk.or.us  

 
The Parties may change the persons named in this section by notice to the other Parties as 
provided herein.  No amendment to this Agreement is required to make such change. 

 
XIX MERGER; INTEGRATION 
 

This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties and no 
statement made by any party hereto, or agent thereof, not contained or attached 
with reference thereto in this written Agreement will be valid or binding. This 
Agreement will supersede all previous communications, representations, either 
verbal or written, between the parties hereto.  This Agreement may not be enlarged, 
modified or altered except in writing, signed by the parties, and attached. 
 
 

STATE OF OREGON  
DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS POLK COUNTY  
 
 
    
Eric McDowell, Contracts Officer Signature 
 
 
    
Date  Title Date 
 
 
  
Reviewed by the  
Oregon Attorney General’s Office:  
 
  
 /s/  _________________________________  
Assistant Attorney General 
  
  



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 11 of 14 

 
  

EXHIBIT A 
SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDING INTERVENTION PLAN and BUDGET SUMMARY 

POLK COUNTY 
(To be attached upon signature and return of Agreement by County) 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 12 of 14 

EXHIBIT B 
INDEMNIFICATION 

POLK COUNTY 
 
 

Contribution 
 
If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort as now or 
hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against a party (the "Notified Party") with 
respect to which the other party ("Other Party") may have liability, the Notified Party must promptly 
notify the Other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to the Other Party a copy of the 
claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. Either party is entitled 
to participate in the defense of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel 
of its own choosing. Receipt by the Other Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph 
and meaningful opportunity for the Other Party to participate in the investigation, defense and 
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to 
the Other Party’s liability with respect to the Third Party Claim. 
 
With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the Department is jointly liable with the County (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim ), the Department shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the County in such proportion as is appropriate to 
reflect the relative fault of the Department on the one hand and of the County on the other hand in 
connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement 
amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the 
Department on the one hand and of the County on the other hand shall be determined by 
reference to, among other things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and 
opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or 
settlement amounts. The Department’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same 
extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if the Department had sole liability in the 
proceeding. 
 
With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the County is jointly liable with the Department (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), the County shall contribute to the amount of expenses 
(including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the Department in such proportion as is appropriate to 
reflect the relative fault of the County on the one hand and of the Department on the other hand in 
connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement 
amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the County on 
the one hand and of the Department on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among 
other things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct 
or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. 
The County’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been 
capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in the proceeding. 
 
 

Alternative Dispute Resolution 
 
The parties should attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this Agreement.  This 
may be done at any management level, including at a level higher than persons directly 
responsible for administration of the Agreement.  In addition, the parties may agree to utilize a 
jointly selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of 
litigation. 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 13 of 14 

 
 

Indemnification by Subcontractors 
 
County shall take all reasonable steps to cause its contractor(s) that are not units of local 
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the 
State of Oregon and its officers, employees and agents (“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all 
claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including attorneys’ fees) arising from a 
tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in 
part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of  County’s contractor or any of the officers, 
agents, employees or subcontractors of the contractor( “Claims”).  It is the specific intention of the 
parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by the contractor from and 
against any and all Claims. 
 

Subcontractor Insurance Requirements 
 
GENERAL.  
 
County shall require its first tier contractor(s) that are not units of local government as defined in 
ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance  specified under TYPES AND AMOUNTS and meeting 
the requirements under, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and 
CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before the contractors perform under contracts between County 
and the contractors (the "Subcontracts"), and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout the 
duration of the Subcontracts.  The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or entities 
that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of 
Oregon and that are acceptable to Department.  County shall not authorize contractors to begin 
work under the Subcontracts until the insurance is in full force.  Thereafter, County shall monitor 
continued compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent 
basis.  County shall incorporate appropriate provisions in the Subcontracts permitting it to enforce 
contractor compliance with the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to 
enforce such compliance.  Examples of "reasonable steps" include issuing stop work orders (or the 
equivalent) until the insurance is in full force or terminating the Subcontracts as permitted by the 
Subcontracts, or pursuing legal action to enforce the insurance requirements.  In no event shall 
County permit a contractor to work under a Subcontract when the County is aware that the 
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, a “first tier” 
contractor is a contractor with which the county directly enters into a contract.  It does not include a 
subcontractor with which the contractor enters into a contract. 
 
 
TYPES AND AMOUNTS. 
 
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
 
Professional Liability Insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission or negligent 
act related to the services to be provided under the Subcontract, with limits not less than 
$2,000,000, as determined by the Department:  
 
"TAIL" COVERAGE.  If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as 
professional liability insurance,  the contractor shall maintain either “tail" coverage or continuous 
"claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous “claims made” 
coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subcontract, for a minimum of 24 months 
following the later of : (i) the contractor’s completion and County ’s acceptance of all Services 



IGA #6948 Polk County  Contracts Unit esm 072125 Page 14 of 14 

required under the Subcontract or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the 
Subcontract.  Notwithstanding the foregoing 24-month requirement, if the contractor elects to 
maintain “tail” coverage and if the maximum time period “tail” coverage reasonably available in the 
marketplace is less than the 24-month period described above, then the contractor may request 
and Department may grant approval of  the maximum “tail “ coverage period reasonably available 
in the marketplace.  If Department approval is granted, the contractor shall maintain “tail” coverage 
for the maximum time period that “tail” coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace.  
 
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. The contractor or its insurer must provide 30 days’ 
written notice to County before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of 
aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).  
 
CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. County shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of 
insurance for all required insurance before the contractor  performs  under the Subcontract. The 
certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are 
endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a “claims made” basis, the 
extended reporting period applicable to “tail” or continuous “claims made” coverage.  



‭CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET‬

‭Staff Contact:‬ ‭Rosana Warren Rivera‬ ‭Phone Number (Ext):‬ ‭2550‬

‭Department:‬ ‭Health Services: Behavioral Health‬ ‭Consent Calendar Date:‬ ‭September 03, 2025‬

‭Contractor Name:‬ ‭Marion County‬

‭Address:‬ ‭3180 Center Street NE Ste 2100‬

‭City, State, Zip:‬ ‭Salem, OR 97301-4572‬

‭Effective Dates - From:‬ ‭July 01, 2025‬ ‭Through:‬ ‭June 30, 2026‬

‭Contract Amount:‬ ‭$44,000‬

‭Background:‬
‭Marion County through its Behavioral Health Crisis Center, formerly Psychiatric Crisis Center (PCC), has‬
‭agreed to provide crisis evaluation, referrals or other related hospital diversion services to Polk County‬
‭residents along with placement in a respite setting or dual diagnosis bed in accordance with PacificSource‬
‭eligibility requirements.‬

‭Discussion:‬
‭This Agreement is a continuation of services Marion County has been providing Polk County in the past‬
‭fiscal years and increases the rate for Urgent Care services in alignment with COLA.‬

‭Fiscal Impact:‬
‭The total amount not to exceed is $44,000 with payments made as $3k per month. The remaining $8,000 is a‬
‭not to exceed amount for direct services provided to Polk County residents. The Behavioral Health Services‬
‭budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this contract. The fiscal year 2025-2026‬
‭Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this agreement.‬

‭Recommendation:‬
‭It is recommended that Polk County sign this Agreement with Marion County.‬

‭Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:‬
‭Name:‬ ‭Rosana Warren Rivera‬ ‭E-mail:‬ ‭hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us‬

‭Name:‬ ‭E-mail:‬



Polk County Contract No. 25-159















8/27/25















Collective Bargaining Agreement

Between

Polk County, Oregon

And

Polk County Deputy District Attorneys
Sub LocallT3 -2

American Federation of State
County and Municipal Employees

AFSCME

Effective July 1 ,2025 through June 30, 2027

a

Polk County Contract No. 25-160



ARTICLE I

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Union Recognition

Union As Exclusive Representative
New Positions

A.
B.

1

1

2

J

J

J

J

J

J

J

4
4
4

5

5

5

6

6

6

7

7

7

7

8

ARTICLE II Management Rights

ARTICLE III Union Security and Check Off

Fair Share Agreement
Bargaining Unit Members Deductions
Monthly Dues Approved
Dues of Terminating Employees
Religious Objections
County Not Liable for Errors
Change of Status List
Union Indemnification of County
Continuation of Dues Payments

Hours Of Work

Regular Hours
Deputy District Attorneys On-call

ARTICLE IV

Section 1

Section 2

ARTICLE V Holidays

Section I
Section 2
Section 3

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6

ARTICLE VI Sick Leave

Section I
Section 2
Section 3

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6

Section 7

ARTICLE VII Vacations

Section 1

Section 2

Section I
Section 2
Section 3

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6
Section 7

Section 8

Section 9

List of Holidays
Holiday Pay
Weekend Holidays
Holiday During Leave
Holiday Work
Holidays For Part-time Employees

Sick Leave
Sick Leave Without Pay
Notification of Illness
Sick Leave Accumulation for 4i10
Sick Leave For Part-time Employees
Sickness During Paid Vacation
Sick Leave Administration

Accrual of Vacation
Scheduling Vacations

8

9

9
9
9

9
10

11

1

rl_

l1
11



ARTICLE XII Settlement Of Disputes

Maximum Accrual
Vacation Buyout
Break in Service
Termination or Death
Vacation for Part-Time Employees

Other Leave

Other Leaves of Absence With Pay

Other Leaves of Absence Without Pay

Military Leave With and Without Pay

Peace Corps Service
Parental Leave
Union Leave
Education Leave
Bereavement Leave

Definitions
Layoff
Recall
Bumping
Seniority Lists

Compensation
Advancement Through the Range
Work Out of Class

Pay Periods
Reporting Time
Distribution
Regular Reporting Place
Emergencies
Employee's Use of Personal Vehicles
Bilingual Pay
Completion Date Performance Appraisals

Discipline And Discharge

Just Cause

Suspension Pending Investigation
Due Process

Grievance Definition
Exclusive Remedy
Time Limitations & Procedures

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5

Section 6

Section 7

11

t2
l2
t2
12

I3

13

13

13

13

t4
I4
15

15

t6

t6
t6
l7
t7
t7

2t
2I
2l

ARTICLE VIII

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6

Section 7

Section 8

ARTICLE IX Seniority

WagesARTICLE X

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6

Section 7

Section 8

Section 9

Section 10

Section 11

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

ARTICLE XI

18

18

18

t9
t9
t9
20
20
20
20
20
20

2t

22

22
22
22

l-l-1



Section 1

Section 2
Section 3

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6
Section 7

Section 8

Section 9

ARTICLE XIV Workers'Compensation

Grievance Steps

Job Stewards
Negotiation Team
Union Meetings

General Provisions

No Discrimination
Bulletin Boards
Visits by Union Representatives
Personnel Rules
Furnishing Labor Agreement
Contract Work
Job Sharing
Use of County Property for Union Business

Use of County Cell Phone/Smart Phone Policy

Employees to Be Insured
County's Supplemental PaYments

Medical Insurance
Life Insurance
Employee Participation
Conversion of Sick Leave Upon Retirement
Retirement
Insurance for Part-time Employees

ARTICLE XIII

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6
Section 7

Section 1

Section 2

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6

22
25
26
26

27

27

ARTICLE XV Health Insurance And Welfare

27
27
28
28

28
28

29
29

30

30
30

3I

3l
31

32
32

32
32

JJARTICLE XVI

ARTICLE XVII

Section 1

Section 2
Section 3

Section 4
Section 5

Section 6

Section 7

Section 8

ARTICLE XVIII Trial Service

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Savings Clause

Personnel Records 34

Content of and Right to Inspect

Signature of Employee on Documents
Refusal to Sign by Employee
Employee Written Rebuttal
Additions and Deletions to File
Copies of File Contents
Offrcial Personnel File
Incorrect Critical Material

Trial Service Period
Length of Trial Service
Appointment to Regular Status

Removal of Trial Service Employee

iv

34
34
34
34
34
35

35
35

36

36
36
36
36



ARTICLE XIX Inclement Weather 37

Section I
Section 2

ARTICLE XX Employee Training

Closing Operations After Reporting In
Absence When Offices Open

General Training Activities
Union Orientation for New Members
Time of Training Periods

Safe Work Environment
Training

37
37

38

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

ARTICLE XXI
Section 1

Section 2

ARTICLE XXII

ARTICLE XXIII

ARTICLE XXIV

Safety

Drug & Alcohol Testing Policy

Entire Agreement

Termination

38

38
38

39
39
39

40

42

43

V



A.

. ARTICLE I.

UNION RECOGNITION

Union as Exclusive Representative. The County recognizes the American Federation of State and

Municipal Employees, AFSCME Council 75, as the exclusive representative for all employees of
the County except that the following categories shall be excluded from the bargaining unit.

1. All supervisory and confidential employees as defined by the listing of such employees in
Enclosure 1.

2. All part-time employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than 80 hours per

month.

All temporary employees as follows:.J

a.

b

Those employees who are hired for a seasonal, limited-tern or temporary

employment need. Such an employee shall not be employed by the County for a

period of more than 6 months ina12 month period.

Those employees who are hired to replace employees who are on non-paid leave.

Such an employee shall not be employed to replace any single employee for more

than12 consecutive months without the written consent of the Union.

B

4. All employees who are currently in other bargaining units.

5 All student employees. A student employee shall be an employee who as a result of a
written agreement between the County and a college or university is allowed to apply

his/her County employment towards meeting a part of the institution's course

requirements.

New Positions. If the County creates a new classification, position or job title (i.e., by assignment

of an existing employee or the hiring of a new employee to such newly created classification), it
shall, within 7 days of the date of hire of the new employee or of the date of assignment of the

existing employee to the new class if applicable, notifl the Union in writing of it's creation of new

classification. Such notice shall include a declaration as to the bargaining unit status of the new

position, wage schedule, classification and job description. If the Union disagrees with the

bargaining unit status determination of the County, it shall have six months, pursuant to OAR 115-

25-005, in which to file a unit clarification petition.

1



. ARTICLE II I

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

It is recognized that an area of responsibility must be reserved so the County can serve the public

effectively. Except to the extent expressly abridged by a specific provision of this Agreement, it is

recognized that the responsibilities of management are exclusively functions to be exercised by the

County and are not subject to negotiation or the grievance procedure. By way of illustration, and not of
limitation, the following are listed as such management functions:

A. The determination of the County's financial, budgetary, accounting and organizational

policies and procedures.

B. The continuous overseeing of personnel policies, procedures and programs promulgated

under any ordinance or administrative order of the County establishing personnel rules and

regulations not inconsistent with any other term of this Agreement.

C. The management and direction of the work force including, but not limited to, the right to

determine the methods, processes, and manner of performing work; the determination of
the duties and qualifications to be assigned or required and the determination of job

classifications; the right to hire, promote, demote, transfer and retain employees; the right

to discipline or discharge for proper cause; the right to lay off for lack of work or funds;

the right to abolish positions or reorganize the departments or divisions; the right to
determine schedules of work; the right to purchase, dispose of and assign equipment or

supplies; and the right to contract or subcontract any work.

This Articte shall not preclude the Union and the County from either, (1) meeting during the

period ofthe contract at the request ofeither party to discuss procedures for avoiding grievances and other

problems and for generally improving relations between the parties, or (2) negotiating on any matter

during the open negotiation period before termination.

2



o nRrrcr,n ur I
UNION SECURITY AND CHECK OFF

Section I

Employees covered by this Agreement shall have the right to pay dues as a means to participate in

their Union through application to the Union. Application and resignations of membership shall be

handled solely by the Union.

Section 2

During the life of this Agreement, the Union will notiff the Agency periodically of
individuals who have become members of the Union.

An electronic file listing new authorizations or changes in authorizations for employee Unton

deductions will be submitted by the Union to the County electronically by close of business on the

business day immediately preceding the tenth (10ft) of each month. The County agrees that payroll

deduction authorizations submitted within the timelines above shall be deducted from the next issued

paycheck for the previous applicable pay period.

The County agrees to run an audit comparing the full list of all represented bargaining unit

employees with the list of employees who have authorized Union deductions as provided for
electronically by the Union. This audit shall take place at least quarterly or as mutually agreed upon in

writing by the parties.

The Union shall notify the County of the current rate of dues and other authorized deductions in a

timely manner, which will enable the County to make the necessary payroll deductions as specified.

The County shall deduct the specified amount for payment to AFSCME Council 75 from the

monthly paycheck of employees in the bargaining unit who have authorized the deduction. The County

agrees to remit the aggregate deductions together with an itemized statement to AFSCME Council 75,by
the first day of the succeeding month after such deduction.

Employees whose employment begins or ends after working less than ten (10) working days in
any calendar month will not be subject to dues deduction.

The County shall provide the Union with an editable Excell spreadsheet containing the following
information for each employee in the bargaining unit:

a. The employee's name, unique identifier, and date of hire

Contact information including: cellular, home and work telephone numbers; personal

and work electronic mail address; and home or personal mailing address; and the

employment information including the employee's job title, salary, work schedule/shift

and worksite location.

3

b.



c. Employment status change and effective date.

d. Leave of Absence or retiree status, if applicable.

The County shall provide the information upon acceptance of an offer of employment for newly

hired employees, and once per month for employees in the bargaining unit who are not newly hired.

Section 3

The Union will indemnifi, defend and hold the County harmless against any claims made and

against any suit instituted against the County as a result of any action taken pursuant to this Article. Such

indemnification shall include, but not be limited to, any court costs, afforney fees and other expenses

incuned by the County.

Section 4

All labor laws pertaining to Union dues and membership.

4



. ARTICLE IV.

HOURS OF WORK

Section I

Regular Hours
Employees are exempt from state and federal overtime laws, and are expected to work a flexible,
professional workweek on a salaried basis. The parties recognize that business hours for law offices and

for most govemmental agencies, including the courts, are from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through

Friday, which generally requires that, during this time, legal staff be available in order to perform timely
and effective legal services. The work week shall begin at 12:01 a.m. Monday and end midnight on

Sunday.

Section 2

Deputy District Attorneys On-Call

Deputy District Attorneys assigned on-call duties for the year shall receive administrative leave at a rate of
eight (8) hours per calendar month.

Administrative leave shall accumulate throughout the calendar year and shall be paid off for any hours in
excess of forty (40) hours every December 31't.

Section 3

On-Call Scheduling

The On-Call schedule will be provided in writing to all members assigned On-Call duties no less than 90

days before the new On-Call schedule goes into effect. Employees will have 15 days to review the new

schedule for potential conflicts prior to its distribution to outside agencies.

Section 4

Telecommuting and Remote Work

With advanced notice and approval from the District Attomey or their designee, employees may be

allowed to telecommute and work remotely. Requests to telecommute or work remotely may be approved

provided granting the request would not impair the operations of the Office, the specific work the

employee would be performing for telecommuting or remote work, and the request complies with County

telecommuting policy.

5



. ARTICLE V.

HOLIDAYS

Section L

Holidays

The following days shall be recognized and observed as holidays for trial service and regular

employees in the County service working fifty percent (50%) or more of the equivalent full-time position:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Day
Presidents'Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Veterans'Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Eve

On Monday:
On Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday

On Friday, Saturday, Sunday:
Christmas Day
Four floating holidays

January 1

Third Monday in January
Third Monday in February
Last Monday in May
July 4
First Monday in September
November 11

Fourth Thursday in November
Fourth Friday in November

The whole day.
1:00 to 5:00 p.m. or four hours paid leave

depending on the work schedule.

No paid time off
December 25
Employees' choice subject to County staffing
requirements.

The floating holidays will be converted to personal leave days (eight hours for full time employees) each

fiscal year on July 1 and must be used by June 30 of the next year. Leave hours (32 hours for full+ime
employees) shall be placed in a leave bank to be utilized during the fiscal year.

Also, any other holiday granted by the Board of Commissioners.

If during the duration of this agreement, a new holiday is declared by the Federal Government, employees

shall receive the day off with pay. Columbus Day and/or any renamed holiday observed on that date shall

be excluded from recognition as a new holiday.

Section 2

Holiday Pay

Eligible fuIl-time trial service and regular employees shall receive eight (8) hours pay for each of
the holidays listed above on which they perform no work. All employees must be in paid status both the

working day before and the working day after the holiday to be eligible to receive pay for the holiday.
Part-time trial service and regular employees working fiffy percent or more of full-time shall be paid for
holidays on a pro rata basis (see Section 6 below).

6



Section 3

Weekend Holidays

Whenever New Year's Day, Independence Day, Christmas or Veteran's Day fall on a Sunday, the

succeeding Monday shall be observed as the holiday. Whenever these holidays shall fall on a Saturday,

the preceding Friday shall be observed as the holiday. Employees working an irregular workweek shall

receive the same number of holidays as employees working the regular workweek.

Section 4

Holiday During Leave

Should an employee be on authorized leave with pay when a holiday occurs, such holiday shall

not be charged against such leave.

Section 5

Holiday Work

If an employee performs any authorized work on any of the holidays listed above, they-shall be

paid at the rate of time and one-half (l ll2) for all hours worked in addition to their regular holiday pay.

Such payment shall be paid as outlined in "Overtime", Section 5, Article X.

Section 6

Holidays for Part-time Employees

Part-time employees working fifty percent (50%) or more of the equivalent full-time position shall

accrue holidays on a pro-rata basis. Benefits will be set and changed according to Article [V, Hours of
Work, Section 13, Proration of Benefits for Part-time Employees.

1



I Anrrcln vr i
SICK LEAVE

Section I

Sick Leave

Sick leave shall be earned by each full+ime employee in the classified service at the rate of eight
(8) hours per month for employees working a forty (40) hour workweek. Sick leave may be accumulated

without limit.

Employees may utilize their allowances of sick leave when unable to perform their duties by

reason of illness or injury, necessity for medical or dental care, exposure to contagious disease under

circumstances which the health of the employees with whom associated or member of the public
necessarily dealt with would be endangered by attendance of the employee, or by illness in their
immediate families, for such period as the employee has sick leave credit. The employee has the duty to

insure that he/she makes other arrangements, within a reasonable period of time, for the attendance of
family members.

After three (3) working days of sick leave for care of a family member, the employee shall discuss

the situation with the supervisor. After 10 working days and with the approval of the department head, the

employee may continue to use sick leave.

For the purposes of determining family members, the following shall be used: Father, mother,

brother/sister, spouse, qualifying same-sex domestic parhrer children/stepchildren, mother-in-law, father-

in-law, grandparents, grandchildren and documented member of household. In all other cases, absences

shall be charged to accrued vacation leave where circumstances warrant.

If in the opinion of the department head, circumstances appear to warrant, the department head

may require verification of the attending physician or practitioner to substantiate that an illness or injury
prevents the employee from working. The Employer may also require the employee to substantiate the

need for any absence to attend an ill family member.

The Employer, at its expense, may require a physician's certification of fitness to work.

No compensation for accrued sick leave shall be allowed for any employee when he/she is in a
non-paid status. Sick leave shall not accrue during any period of leave of absence without pay. When an

employee is transferred to, or appointed to another County department, his/her sick leave credit shall

continue.
Section 2

Sick Leave Without Pay

For employees who exhaust sick leave benefits for circumstances that fall outside Federal or State

family medical leave eligibility, an employee may request up to ninety (90) calendar days of sick leave

without pay. This leave request will not extend family medical leave entitlement periods. The Board of
Commissioners may grant such leave if it determines that the leave will not place any undue hardship on

the organization. From time to time, the Employer may require that the employee submit a certificate from

B



the attending physician or practitioner. The certificate shall establish that sufficient disability exists to
justifr the leave and that there is reasonable expectation that the employee will be able to return to work at

the end of the leave. In the event of a failure or refusal to supply such certificate, or if the certificate does

not clearly show sufficient disability to preclude the employee from the performance of duties, such leave

shall be canceled and the employee's service terminated.

Section 3

Notification

Any employee who is ill and unable to report to work shall make reasonable effort to notiS his/her
immediate supervisor at least thirty (30) minutes prior to his/her reporting time unless other notification
requirements are established by mutual agreement between the employee and the department head (see

also Article IX, Section 1, "Abandons Position"). For employees who work swing shift or graveyard shift,
notification shall be prior to 1:00 p.m.

Section 4

Sick Leave Accumulation During 4/L0 Workweek

During those periods of time when the County has implemented the 4/10 workweek as provided

by this contract, the accumulation rate of sick leave shall be eight (8) work hours per month for full-time
employment. Employees shall make every effort to not schedule non-emergency medical or dental

appointments during the 4lI0 workweek.

Section 5

Sick Leave for Part-time Employees

Part-time trial service and regular employees working fifty percent (50%) or more of the

equivalent full-time position shall accrue sick leave on a pro rata basis.

Section 6

Sickness During Paid Vacation

An employee who becomes ill during a period of approved vacation leave may not use sick leave

in lieu of vacation. If the illness extends beyond the vacation period, only the time subsequent to the end

of the vacation will be charged to sick leave.

Section 7

Sick Leave Administration

Charges against accumulated sick leave shall be made as actual time used, calculated in 15-minute

increments.

9



. ARTICLE VII .

VACATIONS

Section I

Accrual

Full-time trial service and regular employees having served in the County service for six (6)

continuous calendar months shall be credited with 48 hours of vacation leave (see Section 6, Vacation

Leave for Part-time Employees). Thereafter, employees shall accrue additional vacation time in
accordance with the following schedule.

Years of Service

A. Less than five (5) years of service

B. Five (5) years, but less than ten (10) years of service

C. Ten (10) years, but less than fifteen (15) years of service

D. Fifteen (15) years, but less than twenty (20) years of service

E. Twenty (20) or more years of service

Section 2

Scheduling Vacations

Hours Accumulated
Per Month

8.0

10.0

12.0

t4.0

16.0

Maximum
Accumulation

200.00

2s0.00

2s0.00

2s0.00

300.0

Vacation time shall be scheduled by the County. Whenever possible, employees shall have the

right to determine vacation time, but in any case, vacation time shall be selected on the basis of seniority.

Each employee will be permitted to exercise their right of seniority only once per two (2) calendar years.

Under no circumstance shall an employee who has completed their initial six (6) months of service lose

any accrued vacation time unless such employee fails to take such vacation leave as scheduled. Vacation

requests pursuant to this section shall be granted or denied within ten (10) working days of the submitted

request. If a vacation request is not acted upon within ten (10) working days of submittal, it is deemed

approved.

Section 3

Maximum Accrual

The maximum accumulation that a full-time employee will be allowed of eamed vacation will be

200 hours for employees with less than five (5) years of service 250 hours for employees with five (5)

years and 300 hours for employees with twenty (20) years of service. Employees will forfeit any hours in

10



excess of their maximum accumulation on December 3 l't of each year or upon termination from County

employment with two exceptions:

1) If there are extraordinary circumstances outside an employee's control, in which case, with the

prior approval of the Board of Commissioners, employees may be paid for the excess hours;

2) If the County is unable to schedule vacation due to the departmental work schedule, the

employee will receive payment for vacation time that he or she otherwise would lose because

of the accrual limitation. "Termination from County employment" does not include

termination caused by the death of the employee.

Section 4

Vacation Buyout

Each fiscal year, employees more may elect during the January, May and/or October payroll

periods to cash out up to 40 hours of accrued vacation. Employees who wish to cash out (up to 40 hours)

their vacation time shall note the amount of vacation time on their January, May or October timesheet. At
no time shall the buyout cause the employee to drop below 40 hours of accrued vacation.

Section 5

Break in Service

Time spent by an employee on military leave, Peace Corps duty, sick leave resulting from an

inju.y or illness incurred in the course of employment including Family Medical Leave, andlor any other

paid leave shall be included as time worked for the purpose of determining length of service.

Time spent on other types of authoized leave will not be counted in determining length of service,

provided that employees retuming from such leave and employees on layoff status shall be entitled to

credit for the length of service prior to the leave or layoff.

Section 6

Termination or Death

After six (6) months of service, upon the termination, for any reason, of an employee, or the death

of an employee, all accumulated vacation and administrative leave shall be paid either to the employee or
his/her heirs, whichever the case may be.

Section 7

Vacation Leave for Part-time Employees

A parttime trial service or regular employee working fifty percent (50%) of the equivalent full-
time position shall accme vacation leave on a pro rata basis. Benefits will be set and changed according to
Article IV, Hours of Work, Section 13, Proration of Benefits for Part-time Employees.

11



. ARTICLE VIII.

OTHER LEAVE

Section 1

Other Leaves of Absence With Pay

Employees shall be granted leave with pay for service on a jury or when under court subpoena as a

disinterested witness, provided the employee shall seek all fees due them for jury or witness duty, except

mileage reimbursement, and the employee turns said fees over to the County. Upon being excused from
jury or witness duty for any day an employee shall immediately contact their supervisor for assignment for
the remainder of that workday.

Time off from work for appearances in court and other proceedings other than as provided above,

shall be charged to accrued vacation, compensatory time or leave without pay.

Section 2

Other Leaves of Absence Without Pay

In instances where the work will not be seriously handicapped by the temporary absence of an

employee, the appointing power may grant a leave of absence without pay not to exceed ninety (90)

calendar days. Leaves ofabsence without pay for periods in excess ofninety (90) days per calendar year

must be approved by the governing body. Request for such leave must be in writing and must establish

reasonable justification for approval of the request. Normally, such leave will not be approved for an

employee who is accepting employment outside the County service. Sick leave, vacation and holidays and

the employee's health insurance payment shall be prorated based on time worked in a month.

Section 3

Military Leave With and Without Pay

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with State Law and Federal Law &Regulations.

Section 4

Peace Corps Service

As provided by statute, any employee who enters the Peace Corps of the United States shall be

given leave for such service.

L2



Section 5

Parental Leave

Employees requesting parental leave as provided under Federal and/or Oregon law shall be

permitted to use a combination of accrued vacation, compensatory leave, sick leave and leave without pay.

Employees are expected to exhaust their paid leave benefits before taking parental leave without pay,

except that a40-hour vacation/sick balance may remain if requested by the employee.

Section 6

Union Leave

A. Leave with pay may be granted if the County feels that the Union Representatives

attendance at labor relations education programs would be mutually beneficial to the

County and the Union. Such paid leave shall not exceed a total of five (5) days per contract

year. These five (5) days shall be considered as a pool from which employees granted such

leave shall charge their time.

B. Union officers, stewards and other employee members of the Union may be granted up to

ninety (90) days leave without pay and without loss of status or seniority. Leave accruals,

insurance and other benefits shall be prorated the same as other leaves without pay. Such

leave may be granted upon request of the Union President made to the County Board of
Commissioners not less than ten (10) days in advance of the commencement of the

requested leave. The leave may be granted subject to the employee's departrnent operating

requirements and needs. The number of Union Representatives absent on Union leave

from any one department shall not exceed one (1) at any one time.

C. An employee on paid leave, or whose salary is reimbursed to the County by the Union, will
continue to accrue all benefits.

Section 7

Education Leave

After completing two (2) years of continuous service, an employee, upon written request, may be granted

a leave of absence without pay by the Board for the purpose of upgrading professional ability through

enrollment in education courses at an accredited school. The period of such leave of absence shall not

exceed one (1) year, but may be renewed or extended upon the request of the employee and approval of
the Board. In reaching their decision, the Board or their designee shall provide the employee and/or the

employee's representative with the opportunity to be heard on the matter.

Section 8

Bereavement Leave

When a member of the employee's or employee's spouse's immediate family has died, up to 3 days

per death bereavement leave with pay shall be granted to an employee by the County for the period of
time the employee is unable to perform their duties. Bereavement Leave shall not accumulate from year to

13



year. With approval of the department head, the employee may use accrued compensatory time and

vacation and leave without pay in addition to the 3 days bereavement leave.

For purposes of bereavement leave only, immediate family shall be defined as: father, mother, brother,

sister, spouse, qualifying same sex domestic parhrer, children or step-children, step-parent, mother-inJaw,
father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-inJaw, grandpaxents, grandchildren,

uncle, aunt, nephew, niece and documented members of household.

14



. ARTICLE IX.

SENIORITY

Section I

Definition

Seniority shall be defined as follows:

A. Total length of unbroken service within the County, excluding time in temporary positions.

B. If two (2) or more employees were hired the same day, the most senior employee shall be

determined by drawing their name out of a hat at the time of hire.

For the purpose of computing seniority, all authorized leave with pay shall be considered as time
worked. Employees who are laid off as a result of a reduction in positions, and who are subsequently
reinstated, shall retain their full seniority except for such period of layoff.

An employee's seniority will terminate if he/she resigns, retires, is discharged, abandons his/her
position, does not accept an offer of recall from layoff, except as provided for in the Recall section of this
article; or is not recalled from a layoff list within one (l) year.

"Abandons Position": If the employee is absent for 16 consecutive working hours without having
contacted his/her supervisor, the employee shall be considered to have resigned his/her position
with the County unless conditions or situations beyond the employee's control prevented

contacting the supervisor.

"Does Not Accept an Offer of Recall from Layoff': If the employee fails to

Maintain on file with the County a current address and phone number where he/she can be

reached during the period of the layoff;

Provide written acceptance of a position that is offered to himlher within 72 hours of
receipt of such offer; or

c. Report for work within 15 days of the date of receipt of the recall notification.

Section 2

Layoff

In the event it becomes necessary to lay off employees for any reason, the employees shall be laid off in
the inverse order of their County seniority, by classification within the department that is affected by the
layoff. The County shall give written notice of a pending layoff to any trial service and regular status

employee at least thirry (30) calendar days before the effective date stating the reason for the layoff.

Section 3

a.

b.

15



Recall

Employees shall be recalled from layoff according to their seniority. No new employees shall be

hired until all employees on layoff status have had an opportunity to retum to work in accordance with
this article.

Employees shall have recall rights to positions other than their original job in their former

classification or in classifications they qualify for with pay equal to or less than the pay of their former

classification. Employees recalled to positions other than their original job shall be placed at the same pay

step they held before layoff, whether the salary range is equal to or lower than their former range, and be

subject to a four week trial period. If they fail the trial period, they shall be retumed to the layoff list until
the original one-year layoff period expires. In no case, shall recalled employees go through a trial period

for the job they occupied before layoff.

Employees who have been on a layoff for more than one (1) year, or accept any recall from layoff
at the same salary as the original job, or resign after being recalled shall not be subject to recall.

Employees who accept a position with lower pay than the job from which they were laid off, or who but tp

into a lower paying position, shall have one more recall opportunity within one year of the original layoff
to be recalled to a position in a higher class, but not to a class with a higher salary than the one from which

they were laid off.

An employee laid off from a full-time position may decline recall to a part-time position and

continue to be subject to recall. An employee laid off from a part-time position may decline recall to a
position requiring more hours of work than before layoff and continue to be subject to recall. Otherwise,

any employee who declines a recall from layoff shall not be subject to recall.

Section 4

Bumping

When an employee is laid off due to reduction in the work force, the employee shall be permitted

to exercise his/her seniority rights to bump - replace an employee with less seniority. Such employee may,

if the employee so desires, bnmp the least senior employee in the department, in an equal or lower job

classification provided the bumping employee has greater bargaining unit seniority than the employee

whom he/she bumps, and further, provided the bumping employee is qualified to do the work.

Section 5

Seniority Lists

A list of employee seniority shall be posted on the first business day of January

I6



. ARTICLE X.

WAGES

Section 1

Compensation

Effective July 1, 2025 the classification of Deputy D.A. I shall receive a COLA of 3.0%o.

Effective July l, 2025 the classifications of Deputy D.A. II and III shall receive a COLA of 5.0Yo

For year two (2) of the contract (July 1, 2025), classifications of Deputy D.A. I, II and III shall receive a

COLA based on CPI-West Coast to be in the range of 3.0o/o and 4.5o/o.

The Board may move an entire classification on the Wage Schedule to a higher range on the

schedule. The Board may reclassify a position from one classification to another. The Board may not,

without approval of the Union, change the pay rate of a position except by the reclassification of the

position. The Board shall notify the Union of any movements of classifications to different ranges or
reclassifi cation of positions to different classifications.

When any new position not listed on the Wage Schedule is established, the Employer shall

designate a salary range for such position. In the event that such new position is determined to be within
the bargaining unit, and the Union does not agree that the designated range is proper, the Union shall have

the right to negotiate on the matter.

Section 2

Advancement Through the Range

Advancement through the salary range shall be based upon the satisfactory performance of the

employee.

Advancement to the 2nd step of the salary range on the first of the month following six (6)

full months of satisfactory service at the minimum rate.

Advancement to the 3rd step of the salary range after one (1) additional year of satisfactory

service at Step 2.

Advancement to the 4th step of the salary range after one (1) additionalyear of satisfactory

service at Step 3.

Advancement to the 5th step of the salary range after one (l) year additional satisfactory

service at Step 4.

Advancement to the 6th step of the salary range after one (l) year additional satisfactory

service at Step 5.

I1

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.



Advancement to the 7ft step shall occur after one (1) year additional satisfactory service at

step 6.

Section 3
Work Out of Class

Whenever an employee performs the major distinguishing duties of a higher class for 40

consecutive hours of work or more, excluding sick leave and holidays, in a classification above that in
which the employee is normally classified, the employee shall be paid one step (4Yo) above his/her regular

rate or the first step of the class to which he/she is temporarily assigned, whichever is the greater amount'

Paid sick leave and holidays shall not be considered as a break in 40 consecutive hours of work.

The Employer shall not abuse the requirement of 40 hours of work to avoid the payment of
working out of classification.

Section 4

Pay Periods

Employees shall be paid on a monthly basis with the payday being the last working day of the

month. In the event of a bona fide emergency, an employee may request and, if approved by the County,

shall receive apay advance.

Section 5

Reporting Time

Any employee who is scheduled to report for work and who presents himself/herself for work as

scheduled, but where no work is available to himlher, shall be excused from duty and paid at his/her

regular rate for two (2) hours work.

Section 6

Distribution

A department head may at his/her discretion determine when overtime work is required and may

designate specific employees to perform such overtime work.

Section 7

Regular Reporting Place

The employees' reporting place shall be determined by the County. Employees shall not be

required to report to locations outside of the County except by mutual consent of the parties. The

employee's regular reporting place shall be the worksite where the employee begins their shift.

Section 8

Emergencies

An emergency shall be defined as a circumstance out of the control of the County.

F

1B



Section 9
Employee Use of Personal Vehicle

In the event that it is to the convenience of the Employer to have an employee use their personal

car, the employee shall be compensated at the rate established by the Internal Revenue Service for mileage

reimbursement.

The County shall assign an employee to a designated work site. All work-related travel after

arrival at the reporting worksite shall be reimbursed to the employee.

Employees may be required to provide an automobile as a condition of employment.

Employees who drive their own vehicles in the performance of their duties must have at all such

times the personal liability insurance required of private individuals by ORS 806.080. Employees who use

their personal vehicle for County business shall submit documentation from the insurance company to

their department head showing certification of insurance. The County shall be notified by the employee

within 10 days when the insurance is canceled.

When overnight travel is required, employees will be provided mileage reimbursement or use of a

County vehicle. Employee is not required to carpool.

Section 10

Bilingual Pay

The County shall pay So/oinaddition to the regular rate of pay to employees who use another

language including American Sign Language in addition to English on the job when it is used on a

recurrent, regular basis in the course and scope of their work assignment. The County will approve

employee positions for bilingual pay and determine the qualifications to be eligible for it.

Section Ll
Performance Appraisals

The purpose of this section is to provide clarification of Personnel Rule 9.1.3 as applied to this

agreement's Section 2"Advancement Through the Range". A new hire who has completed the

probationary period to the County shall be appraised on the completion date of the probationary period. A
regular employee will be evaluated on the employee's anniversary date. If either of those days is not a

regular business day, the appraisal shall occur on the next business day.

If the appropriate performance appraiser is unavailable to perform the appraisal the employee's

probationary period completion date or the employee's Anniversary Date, the performance appraisal may

occur up to 14 days before or after the probationary period completion date or Anniversary Date so long

as it does not delay the employee's related advancement through the salary range and timely receipt of the

next step on the salary range. Management will serve the employee with notice of the performance

appraisal deviation as soon as practicable. Such notice will indicate the rescheduled date and time of the

performance apprai sal.

I9



Section 12

Longevity

Employees who have worked for Polk County for a period of ten (10) years or more shall recetve

an increase 2.0o/o to their salary. For employees who have worked for Polk County for a period of fifteen
(15) years shall receive a total increase of 4.0%o to their salary. For employees who have worked for Polk

County for a period of twenty (20) years or more shall receive a total increase of 6.00/o to their salary.

Section 13

Unfilled Position Differential

For the purpose of this article, the County shall budget for Deputy District Attomey positions each

fiscal year. This does not include or apply to the Chief Deputy District Attomey.

In the event that one or more budgeted Deputy District Attorney positions becomes vacant for any

period of time, the remaining Deputy District Attomey's shall receive a 5%o differential for each vacant

Deputy District Attorney position at the first of the following month.

Upon hiring and onboarding of additional Deputy District Attomey(s) to fill the previously

unfilled budgeted positions, the differential compensation shall be discontinued for the filled position(s) at

the end of the month following the hiring of the additional employee.

Section 14

Dry-Cleaning Allowance

The County shall provide a dry-cleaning allowance to each Deputy District Attorney in the

amount of $150 each month. This allowance will be included in the employee's monthly pay check.

20



I a,Rrrcr,n xr I
DISCPLINE AND DISCHARGE

Section I

Just Cause

Disciplinary actions taken against employees shall be limited to the following: written reprimand,

disciplinary probation, reduction in pay or other monetary assessment, demotion, suspension, or discharge

and shall be progressive in nature. Disciplinary action shall be for just cause only and will not be taken

against an employee without procedural due process as herein defined, except as follows:

Demotion: A demotion during a promotional probationary period that is in lieu of a layoff or that

is a reclassification shall not be the basis for a claim of a violation of this Article.

If the County has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be in a manner that is least likely to
embarrass the employee before other employees and the public.

Section 2

Suspension Pending Investigation

An employee may be immediately suspended pending an investigation and completion of the due

process steps if his/her continued presence on the job would constitute a safety hazard to himself/herself

or to other employees or be potentially detrimental to County operations. Such suspension shall be with

PaY' 
section 3

Due Process

Due process shall require, except for written reprimands, the following

a. Before the County notifies the employee of disciplinary action pursuant to part b of this

section, the employee will be served with a written notice and provided an opportunity to

respond as follows:

The employee shall be advised that disciplinary action is being considered.

The specific charges or performance deficiencies will be identified.
The employee will be advised of his/her right to meet with the supervisor with or
without Union representation and respond to the charges. The employee may

respond in writing.

1

2
J

b. After the above due process or response and any appropriate additional investigation has

been completed, the supervisor shall make a decision and give written notice to the

employee.

21



I ARTICLE XII.

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

Section L

Grievance Definition

As used in this Agreement, the term "grievance" means any grievance or dispute, which have risen

between the parties with respect to the application, meaning or interpretation of this Agreement, except

performance appraisals. The County agrees to meet with the Union to review employee disagreements

with performance appraisals.

Section 2

Exclusive Remedy

Grievances shall be initiated and processed in the manner provided herein, which procedure the parties

mutually acknowledge to be the exclusive and binding process for the resolution of disputes constituting

grievances as herein defined. The parties do not waive their rights as provided by law.

Section 3

Time Limitations and Procedures

A. Any and all time limits specified in the Grievance Procedure may be waived by mutual

consent of the parties in writing. Failure of the aggrieved party to submit or prosecute a

grievance in accordance with these time limits shall constitute complete and unequivocal

abandonment of the grievance.

Failure of the County to respond to a grievance within a stated time limit shall result in the

automatic elevation of that grievance to the next step, up to but excluding step 4, pursuant

to the procedures hereinafter provided.

The parties may, by mutual agreement in writing in a particulat case, provide for any

amendment, waiver, modification or addition to the rules and procedures herein set forth,

which agreement shall not affect subsequent cases.

Section 4

Grievance Steps

Grievance at Step I

A grievance at Step 1 shall be initiated by the filing of a written grievance with the

employee's immediate supervisor, of if the employee has no immediate supervisor, with
the grieving employee's department head, within the ten (10) working days after

occrrrence of the circumstances giving rise to the grievance or when the employee knew

or should have known thereof.

aaLZ

B

A.



B. The employee may elect to be represented exclusively by a Union steward with or without
the employee's presence; may elect to have a steward present during the proceedings or
may elect, with notification to the Union, that the employee has chosen to proceed without
Union representation as authorized by ORS 243.666(2).

C. The written grievance shall include:

2

1 The name and position of the employee by or on whose behalf the grievance is

brought.

The date of circumstances giving rise to the grievance and the date of the

employee's first claimed knowledge thereof, if later.

A statement of the grievance including all relevant facts necessary to an

understanding of the employee's position, and the specific provision or provisions

of this Agreement alleged to have been violated.

The remedy or relief sought by the employee.

The signature of the person submitting the grievance and the person's name and

position.

Within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the written grievance, the supervisor shall

respond and attempt to adjust the matter.

Grievance at Step 2

Grievances unresolved at Step 1 shall be carried to Step 2 as follows:

Within ten (10) working days after the immediate supervisor's response was due, the

aggrieved employee shall file with his/her departrnent head a completed Step 1 written
grievance, together with the supervisor's response if in writing or a statement of the

supervisor's response. Upon receipt of the Step 2 grievance, the department head shall

forward a copy of the grievance to the Union if the aggrieved employee is not represented

by a steward.

B. Within ten (10) working days following the receipt of the grievance, the department head,

or his/her designee, will investigate the grievance and respond in writing to the aggrieved

employee. At any time following the department head's receipt of the grievance and before

the cutoff date, the department head, the aggrieved employee and the steward representing

the employee may meet for the purpose of clariffing the issues presented by the grievance.

If agreed to and held, such a meeting shall not delay the Step 2 cutoff date unless all parties

agree to extend the time limits in accordance with Section 3.

If the aggrieved employee elects to represent himself/herself at any Step 2 meeting and the

Union desires to participate in the role of observer, the Union shall be represented by its
designated steward.

J

4

5

D

A.

C.

z5



A.

D. If after the tenth (l0th) day following the department head's receipt of the grievance, the

department head has not responded in writing, or if the aggrieved employee is not satisfied

with the department head's Step 2 response, the aggrieved employee may carry the

grievance to Step 3. This tenth (10th) day shall be known as the Step 2 cutoff date.

Grievance at Step 3

Grievances unresolved at Step 2 shall be carried to Step 3 as follows:

Within ten (10) working days following the Step 2 cutoff date, the aggrieved employee

shall file with the Board of Commissioners a written expression stating forth why the

previous two County responses to the Step 1 grievance have failed to resolve it, along with
the original grievance filed at Step 1.

B Upon the filing of the grievance at Step 3, the Board of Commissioners shall, in the

following order and within ten (10) working days:

Immediately forward a copy of all Step 3 grievance documents to the Union unless

the Union presently represents the aggrieved employee.

Conduct whatever investigation is necessary to satisfy themselves of the facts

surrounding the grievance.

Reduce to writing the facts which he/she finds to be determined of the grievance

and their conclusions as to the merits of the grievance.

Forward copies of such findings and conclusions as to the aggrieved employee to
the Union. At any time following the Board of Commissioners' receipt of the

grievance, and before the cutoff date, the Board of Commissioners, the aggrieved

and the Union shall meet for the purpose of clarifying the issues presented by the

grievance.

C. Within ten (10) days of the receipt of the Board of
Commissioners' findings and conclusions, the Union shall either:

2

a
J

4

I Inform the Board of Commissioners that the grievance has been resolved for all
purposes under this contract.

File with the Board of Commissioners a written notice of rejection of one or more

of the specihc conclusions of the Step 3 response and intent to proceed to Step 4 to
appeal the remaining unresolved grievance issues. The filing of this notice of
rejection shall constitute the Step 3 cutoff date.

2.

Grievance at Step 4:

Grievances unresolved at Step 3 shall be carried to Step 4 as follows:

24



A. Within ten (10) working days of the Step 3 cutoff date, the Union shall initiate binding

arbitration with the State Employment Relations Board (ERB) by sending a demand for
arbitration and a request for a list of five (5) Oregon arbitrators to the ERB and mailing a

copy to the County. The list of arbitrators requested shall be limited to those persons

residing in the State of Oregon.

The arbitration proceeding shall be conducted by an arbitrator to be selected by the

Employer and the Union within five (5) working days after notice has been given. If the

parties fail to select an arbitrator, the Employment Relations Board shall be requested by

either or both parties to provide a panel of five (5) arbitrators.

Both the Employer and the Union shall have the right to strike two (2) names from
the panel. The party requesting arbitration shall strike the first name; the other
party shall strike one (1) name. The process will be repeated and the remaining
person shall be the arbitrator.

The arbitrator shall be requested to render a decision within twenty (20) calendar days after

the conclusion of the final hearing. The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, modifr, add

to or subtract from the terms of this Agreement, or establish or change wage rates. The

decision of the arbitrator shall be binding upon both parties. The cost of the arbitrator shall

be bome equally by both parties. Each party shall be responsible for the costs of presenting

its own case to arbitration, including any outside witnesses and expert witness fees.

Nothing in this article is intended to preclude or prohibit informal discussions of a
potential grievance between the employee and his/her immediate supervisor, provided that

the time limit set forth herein is adhered to. However, after filing the written grievance

Step 1, no further informal discussion shall occur without the mutual consent of the parties.

This grievance procedure does not provide for class action grievances to be instituted by
the Union at any level except at Step I with an employee's immediate supervisor.

Section 5

.Iob Stewards

The Union shall certifu in writing to the County employees authorized to act as Job Stewards. The

Union will send updates as necessary.

Stewards may receive but not solicit, and may discuss, complaints and grievances of employees on

the premises and time of the County, but only to such extent as does not neglect, retard or interfere with
the work and duties of the stewards or with the work or duties of employees. Stewards shall be granted

reasonable time off during regularly scheduled working hours without loss of pay or other benefits to

investigate grievances upon approval of their immediate supervisor. Stewards shall record the time they

use investigating grievances on their monthly time sheets. If the permitted activities would interfere with
either the steward's or the grievant's duties, the direct supervisor(s) shall, within the next working day,

affange a mutually satisfactory time for the requested activities. No more than one (1) steward shall be

involved in the same grievance.

B

C

D

25



Section 6

Negotiation Team

Negotiations will be on County time and without loss of pay for two (2) employees selected by

Union to represent the Union in negotiations. Negotiation sessions that are outside the employee's regular

work schedule shall not be compensable. Should the Union determine a particular item requires specific

input, a fourth member may be added to the bargaining team for the purposes of that input.

Section 7

Union Meetings

The Board of County Commissioners or their designee(s), shall meet at mutually convenient times

with the Union Steward Committee. Steward Committee meetings with the Employer may be held during

working hours, on the Employer's premises, and without loss of pay for a maximum of two (2) members

of the Union. The purpose of Steward Committee meetings will be to discuss with the Employer any

issues which would improve labor relations between the parties.

26



I nRrrcr,n xru I
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section I

No Discrimination

The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all employees in the bargaining unit
without discrimination as to age, sex, gender expression, gender identity, marital status, sexual orientation,

race, color, creed, physical or mental disabilities, injured worker status, national origin or political
affiliation. The Union and the County shall work diligently in applying this provision of the Agreement.

The Employer agrees not to interfere with the rights of employees to become members of
the Union, and there shall be no discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion by the Employer, or any

Employer representative, against any employee because of Union membership or because of any

employee activity in an official capacity on behalf of the Union.

The Union recognizes its responsibility as bargaining agent and agrees to represent all employees

in the bargaining unit without discrimination or restraint.

Section 2

Bulletin Boards

The Employer agrees to furnish and maintain suitable bulletin boards in convenient places in each

work area to be used by the Union. The Union shall limit its posting of notices and bulletins to such

bulletin boards to official Union activities of a non-political nature. For the purpose of this section, the

term political shall mean any subject matter, political party or person for which support or solicitation of
votes is sought.

Section 3

Visits by Union Representatives

The Employer agrees that accredited representatives of the American Federation of State, County

and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, whether Local Union representatives, Council representatives or
International representatives, upon proper introduction to the department head shall have access to the

premises of the Employer at any time during working hours, so long as it does not interfere with the

employee's work perforrnance.

Section 4

Personnel Rules

The Union and the County recognize and agree that the County Personnel Rules have in the past

and may from time to time in the future, be added to, modified or eliminated in whole or in part.

Notwithstanding the requirements of ORS 243.650 to 782, the County shall have no duty to bargain over:

)7



1) the decision to make such changes or 2) the impact that such changes may have. The County Personnel

Rules shall be equitably enforced amongst all bargaining unit members.

Section 5

Furnishing Labor Agreement

The Employer agrees to furnish each employee in the bargaining unit with a copy of this

Agreement thirty (30) days after it becomes effective. New employees shall be provided a copy of this

Agreement at the time of hire.

Section 6

Contract Work

Employer shall have the right to contract or subcontract out any matters as required by Oregon

Public Contracting Law.

Further, the Employer shall have the complete right to contract or subcontract out any work of any

employees without the obligation or duty to bargain over the right to contract or subcontract such work.

It is expressly and clearly understood between the parties that the duty to bargain over the right to

contract or subcontract out is expressly waived by the Union.

The Employer agrees to notify the Union prior to making any final decision regarding contracting

which would displace current employees, and, upon request, to meet and confer with the Union regarding

the decision.

The parties agree there shall be no impact bargaining except for current employees displaced by

contracting or subcontracting. The Employer shall not lay off any current employees with the intent to

contract or subcontract out that position, without the duty to meet and confer with the Union regarding

that decision to contract or subcontract out and the duty to bargain over the impact of that decision.

Section 7

Job Sharing

An employee who desires to job share shall notify hislher department head. If the supervisor

approves the request, a "job share" position will be opened consistent with County procedures. All
benefits will be pro-rated according to the amount of time worked subject to the terms of Article XV,
Health and Welfare.

Section 8

Use of County Property for Union Business

Employees may use County equipment, facilities, or any other County property for notice of and

conducting scheduled union membership meetings.

2B



Section 9

Use of County Cell Phone or Smart Phone Policy

Employees may use a County issued cell phone and/or have access to the County's Smart Phone policy to

conduct business of the Office.

Section L0

Witness Meetings

In an effort to comply with Rule 3-3.4f of the American Bar Association's Criminal Justice Standards for
the Prosecution Function, the County shall make every reasonable effort to provide an additional witress
during meetings where a Deputy District Attomey reasonably believes there is a likelihood that a

participant may be untruthful or that the meeting may give rise to a potential liability for the County or the

Deputy District Attomey.

29



. ARTICLE XIV.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Section 1

All County employees will be insured under the provisions of the Oregon State Workers'

Compensation Act for injuries received while at work for the County.

Section 2

The County shall pay to the employees the difference between what the employee receives from
Workers' Compensation insurance and his/her regular salary rate. The dollar value paid by Polk County

shall be converted to the employee's hourly wage rate and charged on an hourly basis against the

employee's accrued sick leave. If the employee has no accrued sick leave, then the charge shall be accrued

against the employee's vacation leave or compensatory time leave. Upon the exhaustion of the employee's

sick leave, vacation leave or compensatory time, the County's supplemental payments shall cease.

For the purpose of determining calculations hereunder, the day of injury shall be considered a

workday, and the employee shall receive his/her regular wages that day.

30



I ARTICLE XV 
'

HEALTH INSURANCE

Section I

Medical Insurance

Beginning September I,2021 and continuing through the life of the contract, the County will
contribute 90Yo of the monthly premium per employee toward the cost of a health and dental plan.

The County will maintain the current health insurance plans offered to the employee. If health insurance

premiums increase more than l0%o in any given year, modifications/reductions in the health plan may be

instituted by the County, after reaching an agreement with the Union, to reduce the premium increase to

less than 10%.

Employees will pay the remaining l5oh. Employees who decline (opt out) health insurance shall

receive $300.00 a month. To be eligible to receive opt out compensation, the employee must be able to

show proof of health insurance coverage.

The parties agree that if the cost of a current insurance plan is projected to increase and the parties

agree to substitute a plan with a lesser premium the bargaining unit members l5Yo contribution of the

substituted plan will be reduced by 50% of the difference between the projected plan cost and that of the

agreed upon substituted plan. (see costing example Enclosure #3)

The County and the Union shall form a benefits committee consisting of two appointed members

from each party to review benefits and cost trends and make recommendations to the parties. This

committee shall meet quarterly or more often if deemed appropriate by the parties. The County

Administrative Officer and the Union Council representative shall attend meetings of the Committee in an

advisory capacity.

The County shall offer all employees, at no cost to the employee, a long-terrn care plan. The plan

shall be known as the Long Term Care Base Plan offered by LINUM Life Insurance Company of
America.

Domestic partner health insurance will be offered to a qualified same sex partners.

Section 2

Life Insurance

All full-time employees and their families shall be covered after thirty (30) days by a group life
insurance plan. Employees shall be covered in the amount of $50,000. The employee's spouse and

dependents shall be each covered by a $2,000.00 policy subject to the limitations of that policy. The

County shall provide full funding of the cost of such life insurance for the term of this Agreement.

Section 3

31



Employee Participation

Employees desiring to participate in other optional insurance programs currently authorized by the

County may do so at their expense (pursuant to Section I of this article) on payroll withholding.
Employees on a non-paid leave status must make their own arrangements with the Payroll Department to

continue insurance benefits at their own expense, subject to the contract terms and conditions between the

County and the insurance carriers.

Section 4

Conversion of Sick Leave Upon Retirement

Upon retirement under the Public Employee's Retirement System, an employee's accumulated sick
leave will be credited to the Public Employee's Retirement benefits as provided and in accordance with
Oregon Revised Statute 237.153 relating to such conversion and as administered by the Public Employee's

Retirement System.

Section 5

Retirement

The County agrees to continue to be a member of the Public Employee's Retirement System, to pay the

retirement contribution of six percent (6%) required of each employee as provided by Oregon Revised

Statutes and Rules of the Public Employee Retirement Board. While the County's intent is to continue the

6% pick-up, should the laws change for either PERS or OPSRP, the County and Union agree to a reopener

to bargain such changes.

Section 6

Insurance for Part-time Employees

Part-time trial service and regular employees working fifty percent (50%) or more of the

equivalent full-time position shall be eligible to receive county-paid insurance on a pro rata basis if so

elected by the employee.

32



| .q,nrrcl,E xvl a

SAVINGS CLAUSE

Should any article, section or portion thereof of this Agreement be held unlawful and

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision of the court shall apply only to the

specific article, section or portion thereof directly specified in the decision; upon the issuance of such a

decision, the parties agree immediately to negotiate a substitute, if possible, for the invalidated article,

section or portion thereof.

33



. ARTICLE XVII .

PERSONNEL RECORDS

Section I

An employee or the Union, with the employee's written permission, ffiBy, upon request, inspect the

contents of hislher official Courty personnel file.

No grievance material, other than material relating to disciplinary actions, shall be kept in the

personnel file after the grievance has been resolved. No material of an adverse nature may be used against

an employee unless introduced into hislher official personnel file as described in this article.

Section 2

No performance evaluation or disciplinary actions shall be placed in the employee's personnel file

that do not bear the signature of the employee. The employee shall be requested to sign such material to be

placed in his/her personnel file provided the following disclaimer is attached:

"Employee signature confirms only that the supervisor has discussed and given a copy of the

material to the employee, and does not indicate agreement or disagreement."

Good faith, substantial compliance with this provision will be allowed.

Section 3

If the employee is not available within a reasonable period of time or the employee refuses to sign

the material, the Employer may place the material in the file, provided a statement has been signed by two
(2) management representatives and a copy of the document was mailed to the employee at his/her

address of record and a copy to the Union.

Section 4

If the employee believes that any of the above material is incorrect or a misrepresentation of facts,

he/she shall be entitled to prepare in writing his/her explanation or opinion regarding the prepared

material. This shall be included as part of his/her personnel record until the material is removed.

Employee must prepare his/her rebuttal on his/her own time and rebuttal must be submitted within 30

calendar days from the date the material was presented to the employee. The employee may use his/her

regular work statiorVsite through an arrangement approved by his/her supervisor.

Section 5

An employee may include in his/trer personnel file copies of any relevant material he/she wishes,

such as letters of favorable comment, licenses, certificates, college course credit, or any other material

which relates creditably on the employee and his/her employment. Material reflecting caution,

consultation, waming, admonishment or reprimand may at the discretion of the employer, be removed

from the employee's personnel file after one (1) year upon request of the employee. The provisions of this

section shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure.
Section 6

34



An employee may, upon request, obtain copies of any of the contents of his/her personnel file,
excep for confidentially kept testing materials.

Section 7

There shall be only one (1) official personnel file. Other unofficial files may be kept by the

department head.

Section 8

Material reflecting critically or adversely on an employee proven to be materially incorrect shall

be removed from the personnel file.

35



O ANUCLE XVIII 
'

TRIAL SERVICE

Section I

Each employee appointed to a position in the bargaining unit by promotion, or voluntary transfer

into the bargaining unit, shall, with each appointment, serve a trial service period.

Section 2

The trial service period is recognized as an extension of the selection process. It is the time

immediately following appointment, and shall not exceed 12 months for initial hires or five full calendar

months of actual service in the position for promoted or transferred employees. All newly hired employees

shall serve a 12 month trial service period. Promoted and transferred employees shall serve a 5 month

trial service. Promoted or transferred employees not passing their five months trial service shall be

retumed to their former position. Trial service may be extended only in instances where a tt',.al service

employee has been on cumulative leave without pay for fifteen (15) days or more, and then only by the

number of days the employee was on such leave, or as described below for Professional/Technical
employees.

Professional/Technical employees in classifications listed in Enclosure 2 may have their trial
service extended an additional 6 months. The extension will be accomplished only upon written notice to

the Union 2 weeks prior to the expiration of the initial 6 months trial service. The purpose of the notice is

to provide an opportunity to meet and confer to clari$ issues. All new and promoted employees hired at

the first step in the salary range shall receive a 6 month salary adjustment upon satisfactory completion of
the 6 month performance review requirements. Employees hired at a step higher than the first will be

eligible for a salary adjustment after 12 months.

Section 3

When, in the judgment of the County, performance has been adequate to clearly demonstrate the

competence and fitness of the trial service employee, then, at any time, the Employer may appoint the

employee to regular status.

Section 4

Trial service employees may be removed from service when, in the judgment of the department

head, based on consultation with the immediate supervisor, it is determined that the employee does not
demonstrate the competence and/or fitness for the position, or it is in the best interest of the County to
terminate the employee. Such removals under this article are unconditional and not subject to appeal or the

Grievance Procedure.

36



I anrrcl,E xrx a

INCLEMENT WEATHER

Section I

When, in the judgment of the County, weather conditions require the closing or curtailing of
operations after the employee reports to work, the employee shall be paid for the remainder of his/her

shift.

Section 2

When individuals are late or unable to report to work, employees shall use either vacation or

accrued compensatory time to make up those hours lost because of inclement weather. In the event that an

employee has no vacation or accrued compensatory time, time lost shall be considered approved leave

without pay.

31



I aRucr,r xx I
EMPLOYEE TRAINING

Section I

General Training Activities

The County shall encourage and promote training opportunities for employees to the end that

services they render to the County may be made more effective. The County shall assist appointing
powers in meeting training needs of their agencies; and in cooperation with appointing powers, shall

encourage the development of departmental training programs designed to meet personnel needs and to
prepare employees for promotion to positions of greater responsibility.

Section 2

A selected representative of the Union will be allowed no less than 30 minutes and up to 120

minutes without loss of pay during the orientation process to discuss the Union and sign new members.

Section 3

Time of Training Periods

Training programs may be conducted during or after regular working hours or both. Attendance by
employees at training sessions conducted after regular working hours shall be in accordance with the Fair

Labor Standards Act for non-exempt employees. Exempt employees shall be granted an equal amount of
compensatory time off.

Section 4
Resources

The County Shall provide all Deputy District Attomeys with the most up to date copy of Oregon

Evidence by Laird Kirkpatrick upon ratification of this contract.

The County shall provide the DA's office with two (2) updated copies each year it is published.

?a



I ARTICLE XXI 
'Safety

Section L

Safe Work Environment
The County acknowledges an obligation to provide a safe and healthy work environment for its
employees. Employees shall report all unsafe acts or conditions to their supervisors when such acts or

conditions occur. No employee shall be disciplined for refusing to work in an unsafe working condition

or for reporting or abiding by Cunty or State safety laws.

Section 2
Training

The County shall provide in person, location specific, active assailant training. This training shall cover

active assailant situations in the DA's office and each courtroom.

39



. ARTICLE XXil.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY

The County and Union are committed to maintaining high standards of employee safety, productivity
and reliability, as well as high standards of fair enforcement integrity. In furtherance of these

objectives, the County strictly prohibits employees from reporting to work or returning to duty with
any amount of drugs or alcohol in their systems. "Drugs" refers to marijuana, cocaine, opiates,

amphetamines, phencyclidine and controlled substances as defined under Oregon criminal codes.

(A) Mandatory Testing. To assist in the enforcement of this policy, the County and Union agree

that mandatory employee testing will be required in the following circumstances:

1. Probable Cause Testing. All bargaining unit employees will be required to immediately
submit to blood, breathalyzer and/or urinalysis testing for the detection of alcohol

and/or drugs when there is probable cause that the employee has reported to work or has

returned to duty with drugs or alcohol in his/her system. When feasible, the signs and

symptoms giving rise to the determination of probable cause will be observed by
another bargaining unit employee.

Employees who engage in prohibited conduct or fail to fully cooperate with the

County's enforcement of this policy are subject to suspension and discipline, including
discharge for just cause.

(B) Safeguards and Testing Procedures. Employees may be tested for the presence of drugs or
alcohol by one or more of the following methods:

1. Urine sample for drugs - Employees will first be subject to EMIT screening. If a

negative result is received, the sample will be considered free of drugs. If a positive
result is received on the EMIT screening, a GCMS (gas, chromatography/mass
spectrometry) test will be used for confirmation, and the employee will provide a

second sample which will also be tested by GCMS for confirmation purposes.

2. Breathalyzer for alcohol - Testing for the presence of alcohol will be by breath analysis

to determine the presence of alcohol. An employee will hrst be subjected to testing by
a portable breath test (PBT) operated by a supervisor, and if the test is positive, a second

test will be administered 15 minutes after the results of the original test for confirmation
purposes.

For the purpose of B (l): The County will use a laboratory certified by the Federal Department

of Health and Human Services (FDHHS) and National lnstitute for Drug Alcohol Abuse
(NIDA). The test results shall be reviewed by the MRO before they are reported to the County
as positive to determine if there is an alternative medical explanation for a confirmed-positive
test result.

Employees are required to respond immediately to the MRO's inquiries and provide any

required information or records to the MRO within 48 hours. Employees will be paid for time
lost from work to undergo testing and/or respond to MRO inquiries.

40



If the confirmatory test result is negative or the MRO determines, after review, that a legitimate
medical explanation exists for the positive test results, no further action will be taken. If,
however, the confirmatory test result is positive and the review indicates that no legitimate
medical explanation exists, other than the unauthorized use of a prohibited substance, the MRO

shall refer the individual's results to the County's designated representative. The County will
noti$ the employee and a designated Association representative of the positive test results.

In the event a positive test is confirmed, the employee has the right to have the samples referred

to in subsection (B)(1) re-tested, upon written request, within seventy-two (72) hours of his/her

receipt of a final test result from the MRO. The employee may designate re-testing by the

original laboratory or another laboratory certified by FDHHS.

All mandatory requirements under this policy shall be paid for by the County and shall be done

by the employee while on an on-duty paid status.

(C) Rehabilitation Assistance. Employees who have alcohol and/or drug dependency problems or

believe they may have such problems are encouraged to pursue employee assistance. Although
the County will support voluntary treatment efforts for employees with drug and alcohol

dependency problems who voluntarily seek assistance, it is up to each employee to pursue

treatment before dependency problems result in unsatisfactory performance, attendance, or
safety records, etc., and before the employee violates this policy.

When an employee voluntarily reports a drug or alcohol dependency problem and seeks

assistance, that employee will be placed on a leave of absence with access to the employee's

accrued leave banks or adjusted working hours based on a health care provider's determination

to allow for in-patient or out-patient rehabilitation treatment. The employee will be permitted

to work after such time as a competent, mutually acceptable health care provider has certified
the employee is able to safely perform his/her assigned duties. The County shall also, on a one

time basis only (once in his/her employment history with the County), allow an employee to

undergo evaluation and rehabilitation as an alternative to termination for violating this policy,
provided: 1) The competent health care provider's evaluation reveals that the employee has a

dependency on the substance(s) taken; and2) The employee's conduct does not otherwise

constitute a felony or a misdemeanor.

To protect their employment, employees undergoing rehabilitation must agree to all treatment,

rehabilitation, after-care and follow-up testing and individual suspicion-less testing for a period

of twenty-four (24) months, as set forth in a written Rehabilitation and Return to Work
Agreement required by the County.

Marijuana. In addition to the above, employees must comply at all times with all federal and state

statutes and regulations regarding the illegal use of drugs. It is important to note that marijuana is an

illegal drug under the federal Controlled Substances Act, which means that it has no acceptable

medical use under federal law. Therefore, any on or off duty use of marijuana which is inconsistent

with the "prohibited conduct" listed above will be considered a violation of this policy, even if an

employee has a prescription for the use of marijuana under the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act.

4L



. ARTICLE XXIII.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The County and the Union for the life of this Agreement and voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the

right, and agree that the other shall not be obliged to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or

matter referred to or covered by this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been

within the knowledge or contemplation of either party or both parties at the time that they negotiated and

signed this Agreement.

42



. ARTICLE XXIV.

TERMINATION

This Agreement shall be effective July 1, 2025, and shall remain in full force and effect through
June 30, 2027.

If either party wishes to renew or modify this Agreement notification of the scope of such renewal
or modification must be submitted to the other party by January 31,2023. The scope of such proposed
modifications by the parly serving notification of intent to modifr shall not preclude or limit the right of
the other party to submit their proposals. Proposals by the non-moving party must be submitted to the
moving party within thirty (30) calendar days of the moving party's notification or March I, 2023,
whichever is later. In the event that such notice is given, negotiations shall begin no later than the 15th day
of January following such notification.

Dated this _ day of September, 2025

POLK COLINTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AFSCME SUB LOCAL 173-2

Chair

43


	25-155 (Amend 1 to 25-109).pdf
	2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE
	FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT



	Staff Contact: Jodi Merritt
	Department: Community Corrections
	Title: Director
	Consent Calendar Date: 
	Contractor Name: State of Oregon - Department of Corrections
	Contractor Address: 2575 Center St. NE
	City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301
	From: July 1, 2025
	Thru: June 30, 2027
	Contract Amount: 226,493.00
	Sole Source: Off
	Competitive Quote: Off
	Formal Bid: Off
	Request for Proposals: Off
	Personal Services: Yes
	Special/Exempt: Off
	Special Exempt: 
	Discussion: Measure 57 was passed by Oregon votes in 2008 requiring increased sentences for certain drug trafficking and theft crimes, requiring addiction treatment for certain offenders at risk of re-offending, and authorizing the State - Department of Corrections to issue grants to counties to provide supplemental funding. This funding is provided to Polk County Community Corrections to provide assistance in supervising the Measure 57 population within the community. PCCC utilizes these funds to support a Probation Officer. 
	Fiscal Impact: The Intergovernmental Agreement #6948 provides revenue to Polk County Community Corrections in the amount of $226,493.00 over the next two years. 
	Recommendation: It is respectfully recommended IGA #6948 be authorized to continue Polk County Community Corrections efforts in providing community supervision to qualifying offenders. 
	E-mail: polen.cassy@co.polk.or.us
	Email 3: 
	Name 1: Cassy Polen
	Name 2: 
	E-mail 2: 
	Name 3: 


